
Jackson County Fire District 3 
Board of Directors Meeting Agenda 

February 15, 2024 at 5:15 PM 
 Crater Lake Room via ZOOM Teleconference, Administration Building 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER – President Tonn 

2. ROLL CALL OF DIRECTORS – Executive Assistant Calvert 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES –President Tonn 

A. REGULAR BOARD MEETING – January 18, 2024 

B. EXECUTIVE SESSION MEETING – January 18, 2024 

4. FINANCIAL REVIEW – Chief Financial Officer Stacy Maxwell 

A. REVENUE, EXPENDITURE AND ACCOUNTS PAYABLE REPORTS – January 2024 

ACTION REQUESTED:  Consider approval of financial reports. 

5. PUBLIC COMMENT (Not to exceed 5 minutes per person) – President Tonn 

6. INFORMATION ITEMS  

A. FIRE CHIEF HUSSEY 

B. DIVISION CHIEF PATTERSON 

C. DIVISION CHIEF DICKERSON 

D. BATTALION CHIEF CLELLAND 

7. OLD BUSINESS – President Tonn 

A. NONE  

8. NEW BUSINESS – President Tonn 

A. RESOLUTION No. 24-02; ADOPTION OF NATURAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN – Fire 
Chief Hussey 

ACTION REQUESTED: Consider adoption of Resolution No. 24-02; Natural Hazard 
Mitigation Plan. 

9. TOPICS FOLLOWING PREPARATION OF AGENDA – President Tonn 

10. GOOD OF ORDER – Fire Chief Hussey 

11. INDIVIDUAL BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS – President Tonn 

12. ADJOURNMENT – President Tonn  



Jackson County Fire District 3 
Minutes – Executive Session – Board of Directors 

January 18, 2024 at 4:00 p.m.  
Crater Lake Room, Administrative Building 

 
 

ATTENDANCE 
 

Board Present:  Directors John Dimick, Steve Shafer, Tim Snaith, and Harvey Tonn  
Board Absent: Bill Leavens 
Staff Present: Mike Hussey, Fire Chief 
Visitors Present: None 
 

President Tonn called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. pursuant to ORS 192.660 (2)(d) and as 
advertised in the Rogue Valley Times dated January 11, 2024. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
ORS. 192.660 (2)(d) to conduct deliberations with persons designated to carry on labor 
negotiations. 
 

The Board of Directors discussed the upcoming labor negotiations with Local 1817 with Fire chief 
Mike Hussey. 
 

 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Motion to adjourn at 5:10 p.m. by Director Shafer. Unanimously adjourned.  
 
 
 
 
 

APPROVED BY:     Submitted by,   
 
 
 

______________________________   _______________________________ 
Board of Directors     Board of Directors 



Jackson County Fire District 3 
Minutes - Board of Directors 

January 18, 2024 at 5:15 PM, Crater Lake Room, Administrative Building via ZOOM 

 

 

ATTENDANCE 
Board Present:  Directors Harvey Tonn, John Dimick, Steve Shafer, and Tim Snaith  
Board Absent: Bill Leavens 
Staff Present: Mike Hussey, Stacy Maxwell, Ryan Dickerson, John Patterson, Will Clelland, and Margie 
Calvert 
Staff Absent: None 
Visitors Present: Lorin Myers, Rob Hernandez, Michelle Frazier, Jason Allen, Ben Kennedy, Andy 
Cardinal, Levi Swillinger, Collin Lee, Kyler Beck, Mark Tomasello, Travis Linville, Evan Caldwell, and 
Trevor Petersen 

President Tonn called the meeting to order at 5:20 p.m. pursuant to ORS 192.640 and advertised in 
the Rogue Valley Times on January 11, 2024.  

MINUTES 
Motion by Director Dimick to approve the minutes of the regular Board Meeting dated December 21, 
2023 as presented. Motion carried unanimously. 

FINANCIAL REVIEW 
Revenue for the month of December totaled $6,913,300. Revenue from the Beginning Fund Balance, 
current taxes, interest earned, OSFM conflagration, grant funding, and lease revenue from the S&B 
James building. The Capital Fund totaled $6,143,000 from the Beginning Fund Balance and the 
transfer from the General Fund. 

Expenditures for the month of December totaled $2,693,000 with personnel services at $1,051,000 
and materials and services at $246,000 and a transfer of $1,395,000 to the Capital Fund. 

Accounts payable equated to $489,719 for December. Noteworthy items for December are the debris 
removal at the Dodge Bridge fuels reduction site, extrication equipment, the PowrPRO gurney, and 
Dodge Bridge exterior refurbishment. 

Motion by Director Shafer to approve the Accounts Payable and the Revenue/Expenditure reports for 
December 2023. Motion carried unanimously. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
None 

INFORMATION ITEMS 
FIRE CHIEF HUSSEY  
Hussey shared the Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan (NHMP) will be presented in February. The county 
commissioners will adopt the plan in early January. The plan establishes Fire District 3 as a 
contributor to the countywide plan and offers eligibility for some natural hazard mitigation grants 
that the District has not been able to apply for previously and offers opportunities for rehab 
recovery. 

Hussey shared the county will be reviewing the ASA and is searching for a consultant for the review 
which will be funded by the county.  

Hussey shared that the Alliance will be meeting next week and will have representatives from 
Senator Wyden and Senator Merkley’s offices. 

DIVISION CHIEF PATTERSON 
Division Chief Patterson shared the District was awarded the $75,000 grant for the Dodge Bridge fuel 
reduction site and is a three-year grant. The District is also looking towards a grant for the Agate Lake 
area. 

Patterson shared the division is finishing the inspections at the EP school district. 



 
 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MINUTES – January 18, 2024  

Patterson shared that the Risk Reduction division will begin the home inspections for the work in the 
Agate Lake area. 

DIVISION CHIEF DICKERSON 

Division Chief Dickerson reported the Training division has been working together with Medford Fire 
Department for regional training. The District has completed the RQI training and has taken the RQI 
to Fire District 4 and it has been well received.  

Dickerson shared that Brian Simenson is the Training Lieutenant and Firefighter Ethan Miller will be 
the fire academy coordinator which will begin February 12th. 

BATTALION CHIEF CLELLAND 
Battalion Chief Clelland reported the District is looking at the logistics needs for the upcoming year 
and evaluating the operation’s needs. 

Clelland shared that Cascade Fire has been able to take the three Type 6 trucks into flatbed 
construction. 

Clelland reported that Ashland Fire Rescue entered into an IGA with the District for use the of the 
ambulance as theirs was involved in an accident. 

OLD BUSINESS   
NONE 

NEW BUSINESS 
ADOPTION OF THE 2024-2027 STRATEGIC PLAN 
Fire Chief Hussey presented the 2024-2027 Strategic Plan. Industry participants, District members, 
elected officials along with Board participation helped produce the direction of the plan. The 
management team participated in synthesizing the plan. This will be a living document that has been 
reviewed by the Board and will be updated and reported on every six months providing updates and 
sharing the successes of the plan. 

Motion by Director Snaith to adopt the 2024-2027 Strategic Plan as presented. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

DECLARATION OF SURPLUS EQUIPMENT - VEHICLE 
Fire Chief Hussey shared that this vehicle has not received a lot of use and would be best to surplus 
the 2002 Dodge 1500. 

Motion by Director Shafer to declare as surplus the 2002 Dodge 1500 as requested.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 

RESOLUTION No. 24-01; NON-BARGAINING UNIT SALARIES AND BENEFITS FOR THE 2023/24 
FISCAL YEAR 
Chief Financial Officer Stacy Maxwell shared the revision to the Non-Bargaining Unit Salaries and 
Benefits for the 2023/24 Fiscal Year as the addition of the change to the Logistics Technician (change 
of description and time) and other adjustments placing all full and part-time positions and salaries in 
one table rather than two.   

Motion by Director Dimick moved to adopt Resolution No. 24-01 Salary and Benefits Schedule for 
Non-Bargaining Personnel for Fiscal Year 2023/24. 

TOPICS FOLLOWING PREPARATION OF THE AGENDA 
None 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
Chief Hussey acknowledged Jasper and Xavier Clelland in the audience. 

 

 



 
 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MINUTES – January 18, 2024  

INDIVIDUAL BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS  
John Dimick shared it is hard to get in the mood of fires during the downpour of rain as he had six 
calves born in the rain. 

Harvey Tonn mentioned that Bill Leavens is on his way to Portland to meet his first grandchild which 
is a girl.  

Tim Snaith stated that moving toward negotiations everyone keep in mind the culture of the 
organization and that it remains healthy rather than focusing on finances; you have a good culture 
here. 

ADJOURNMENT 
 Motion to adjourn at 5:50 p.m. by Director Shafer.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED BY:        Submitted by:  
 
 
_____________________________           
Board of Directors       Margie Calvert  



 

 

Period: 07 - JANUARY

Fiscal Year 2023-2024

Account Number Description Budgeted Revenue Period Revenue YTD Revenue Balance Percent Received

Fund 1 GENERAL FUND

1-0-40000-000 Beginning Fund Balance 6,737,000.00$              -$                             6,547,169.64$              189,830.36$                       97.18%

1-0-40010-000 Taxes; Current 17,000,000.00$            226,810.09$                 15,807,129.99$            1,192,870.01$                    92.98%

1-0-40020-000 Taxes; Prior 350,000.00$                 15,414.24$                   233,476.22$                 116,523.78$                       66.71%

1-0-40030-000 Interest 300,000.00$                 71,313.39$                   313,072.16$                 (13,072.16)$                        104.36%

1-0-40050-000 Workers Comp Refund & Reimb's 5,000.00$                     -$                             14,582.40$                   (9,582.40)$                          291.65%

1-0-40060-000 Sale of Equipment 1,000.00$                     -$                             -$                             1,000.00$                           0.00%

1-0-40080-000 OSFM Conflagrations 1,000.00$                     -$                             18,218.87$                   (17,218.87)$                        1821.89%

1-0-40100-000 Fees for Service; FS/EMS 10,000.00$                   -$                             8,193.75$                     1,806.25$                           81.94%

1-0-40110-000 Fees for Service; Facilities 1,000.00$                     -$                             100.00$                        900.00$                              10.00%

1-0-40200-000 Grants; Local, State, Federal 150,000.00$                 -$                             72,297.40$                   77,702.60$                         48.20%

1-0-40332-000 Contract; General Services 70,000.00$                   -$                             -$                             70,000.00$                         0.00%

1-0-40400-000 Lease Income 10,000.00$                   6,000.00$                     36,000.00$                   (26,000.00)$                        360.00%

1-0-40400-001 Lease Income; RCC 55,000.00$                   -$                             55,229.48$                   (229.48)$                             100.42%

1-0-40500-000 Miscellaneous Income 100,000.00$                 572.50$                        15,915.11$                   84,084.89$                         15.92%

1-0-40600-000 Donations 5,000.00$                     -$                             1,410.00$                     3,590.00$                           28.20%

1-0-43000-000 Loan Proceeds 1,000.00$                     -$                             -$                             1,000.00$                           0.00%

Total 24,796,000.00$            320,110.22$                 23,122,795.02$            1,673,204.98$                    93.25%

Fund 5 CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

5-0-40000-000 Beginning Fund Balance 4,767,000.00$              -$                             4,748,064.20$              18,935.80$                         99.60%

5-0-40060-000 Sale of Capital Assets 700,000.00$                 -$                             620,848.37$                 79,151.63$                         88.69%

5-0-40200-000 Grants; Local, State, Federal 1,000.00$                     -$                             -$                             1,000.00$                           0.00%

5-0-40600-000 Donations 1,000.00$                     -$                             -$                             1,000.00$                           0.00%

5-0-41000-000 Transfer from General Fund 1,395,000.00$              -$                             1,395,000.00$              -$                                    100.00%

5-0-43000-000 Loan Proceeds 1,000.00$                     -$                             -$                             1,000.00$                           0.00%

Total 6,865,000.00$              -$                             6,763,912.57$              101,087.43$                       98.53%

TOTAL ALL FUNDS 31,661,000.00$            320,110.22$                 29,886,707.59$            1,774,292.41$                    94.40%

General Ledger                         
Revenue Analysis

Jackson County Fire 

District 3



Period: 07 - JANUARY

Fiscal Year 2023-2024

 Budget Amount  Period Amount  YTD Amount  YTD Var 
 Encumbered 

Amount 
 Available 

Percent 

Available

SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES

General Fund

PERSONNEL SERVICES 14,582,000.00$          961,642.74                 7,730,555.31              6,851,444.69              -                             6,851,444.69           46.99%

MATERIALS & SERVICES 3,165,000.00$            124,460.32                 1,366,576.01              1,798,423.99              241,953.71                1,556,470.28           49.18%

TRANSFERS 1,395,000.00$            -                              1,395,000.00              -                              -                             -                           0.00%

CONTINGENCY 1,041,000.00$            -                              -                              1,041,000.00              -                             1,041,000.00           100.00%

DEBT SERVICE 449,000.00$               224,271.30                 448,590.80                 409.20                        -                             409.20                     0.09%

UEFB 4,164,000.00$            -                              -                              4,164,000.00              -                             4,164,000.00           100.00%

24,796,000.00$          1,310,374.36$            10,940,722.12$          13,855,277.88$          241,953.71$              13,613,324.17$       54.90%

Capital Fund

CAPITAL OUTLAY 2,939,000.00$            -                              2,439,916.86              499,083.14                 436,405.00                62,678.14                2.13%

CONTINGENCY 139,800.00$               -                              -                              139,800.00                 -                             139,800.00              100.00%

RESERVE 3,786,200.00$            -                              -                              3,786,200.00              -                             3,786,200.00           100.00%

6,865,000.00$            -$                            2,439,916.86$            4,425,083.14$            436,405.00$              3,988,678.14$         58.10%

TOTAL All Funds 31,661,000.00$          1,310,374.36$            13,380,638.98$          18,280,361.02$          678,358.71$              17,602,002.31$       55.60%

DEPARTMENTAL SECTION

Fund

Dept

165,000.00$               13,075.20 92,891.20 72,108.80 0.00 72,108.80 43.70%

70,000.00$                 5,326.40 38,616.42 31,383.58 0.00 31,383.58 44.83%

70,000.00$                 5,326.40 38,578.03 31,421.97 0.00 31,421.97 44.89%

142,000.00$               10,880.00 78,880.00 63,120.00 0.00 63,120.00 44.45%

1-1-55120-000 People Services Administrator 107,000.00$               8,316.80 57,876.25 49,123.75 0.00 49,123.75 45.91%

1-1-55130-000 Data Services Specialist 69,000.00$                 5,139.20 37,259.20 31,740.80 0.00 31,740.80 46.00%

68,000.00$                 0.00 0.00 68,000.00 0.00 68,000.00 100.00%

1,000.00$                   0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 100.00%

30,000.00$                 2,136.00 15,800.00 14,200.00 0.00 14,200.00 47.33%

12,000.00$                 0.00 0.00 12,000.00 0.00 12,000.00 100.00%

1,000.00$                   0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 100.00%

5,000.00$                   405.00 2,835.00 2,165.00 0.00 2,165.00 43.30%

1-1-58199-000 Duty Accrual Payout 8,000.00$                   0.00 0.00 8,000.00 0.00 8,000.00 100.00%

1-1-58200-000 Vacation Payouts 20,000.00$                 0.00 17,966.40 2,033.60 0.00 2,033.60 10.17%

1-1-51150-000 Chief Financial Officer

1-1-51131-000 Executive Assistant

1-1-58192-000 Overtime; Administrative

1-1-51128-000 Finance Assistant

1-1-51110-000 Fire Chief

1-1 ADMINISTRATION

PERSONNEL SERVICES

1 GENERAL FUND

1-1-55140-000 Comm Engagement Coordinator

1-1-58197-000 Vehicle Allowance

1-1-58196-000 Longevity Pay

1-1-58194-001 Incentive Pays

1-1-58197-010 Technology Stipend

 Jackson County                  

Fire District 3 
General Ledger                                                                  
Budget Status - Expense versus Budget

Page 1



 Budget Amount  Period Amount  YTD Amount  YTD Var 
 Encumbered 

Amount 
 Available 

Percent 

Available

155,000.00$               10,812.46 81,701.61 73,298.39 0.00 73,298.39 47.29%

1,000.00$                   0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 100.00%

50,000.00$                 2,094.00 14,570.00 35,430.00 0.00 35,430.00 70.86%

160,000.00$               11,596.30 93,365.05 66,634.95 0.00 66,634.95 41.65%

1-1-58214-000 Paid Leave Oregon Tax 30,000.00$                 10,336.03 9,099.69 20,900.31 0.00 20,900.31 69.67%

31,000.00$                 2,490.96 17,436.72 13,563.28 0.00 13,563.28 43.75%

59,000.00$                 3,787.95 26,251.43 32,748.57 0.00 32,748.57 55.51%

4,000.00$                   464.62 2,360.09 1,639.91 0.00 1,639.91 41.00%

1,258,000.00$            92,187.32$                 625,487.09$               632,512.91$               -$                           632,512.91$            50.28%

1,000.00$                   0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 100.00%

18,000.00$                 116.54 1,796.00 16,204.00 287.94 15,916.06 88.42%

10,000.00$                 329.44 2,607.72 7,392.28 204.58 7,187.70 71.88%

32,000.00$                 1,453.49 9,074.35 22,925.65 1,400.00 21,525.65 67.27%

8,000.00$                   335.15 2,540.34 5,459.66 0.00 5,459.66 68.25%

696,000.00$               2,904.79 380,650.10 315,349.90 128,009.12 187,340.78 26.92%

1-1-60280-000 Community Engagement 10,000.00$                 0.00 4,116.48 5,883.52 0.00 5,883.52 58.84%

115,000.00$               0.00 55,588.50 59,411.50 0.00 59,411.50 51.66%

1,000.00$                   189.39 390.61 609.39 0.00 609.39 60.94%

10,000.00$                 555.00 7,255.00 2,745.00 0.00 2,745.00 27.45%

2,000.00$                   1,566.50 2,868.80 -868.80 0.00 -868.80 -43.44%

12,000.00$                 77.00 1,879.49 10,120.51 154.00 9,966.51 83.05%

25,000.00$                 5,405.79 13,676.80 11,323.20 0.00 11,323.20 45.29%

10,000.00$                 102.68 549.38 9,450.62 0.00 9,450.62 94.51%

950,000.00$               13,035.77$                 482,993.57$               467,006.43$               130,055.64$              336,950.79$            35.47%

2,208,000.00$            105,223.09$               1,108,480.66$            1,099,519.34$            130,055.64$              969,463.70$            43.91%

Dept

1,380,000.00$            103,588.80 758,141.73 621,858.27 0.00 621,858.27 45.06%

1,200,000.00$            90,706.56 655,782.72 544,217.28 0.00 544,217.28 45.35%

2,120,000.00$            137,416.58 1,072,895.45 1,047,104.55 0.00 1,047,104.55 49.39%

1-2-53150-000 Division Chief 1,000.00$                   0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 100.00%

150,000.00$               0.00 42,788.88 107,211.12 0.00 107,211.12 71.47%

375,000.00$               29,215.36 205,844.01 169,155.99 0.00 169,155.99 45.11%

53,000.00$                 4,057.60 28,479.60 24,520.40 0.00 24,520.40 46.26%

1-2-55150-000 Recruitment Retention Coordinator 55,000.00$                 4,258.80 29,708.60 25,291.40 0.00 25,291.40 45.98%

1-2-55180-000 Community Care Providers 335,000.00$               19,343.00 172,852.62 162,147.38 0.00 162,147.38 48.40%

550,000.00$               26,019.33 302,251.31 247,748.69 0.00 247,748.69 45.05%

155,000.00$               8,453.60 68,508.10 86,491.90 0.00 86,491.90 55.80%

1,000.00$                   0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 100.00%

1-2-58192-003 10,000.00$                 342.62 3,889.55 6,110.45 0.00 6,110.45 61.10%

75,000.00$                 4,532.49 33,657.38 41,342.62 0.00 41,342.62 55.12%

118,000.00$               7,873.50 63,959.50 54,040.50 0.00 54,040.50 45.80%

265,000.00$               19,384.00 153,906.00 111,094.00 0.00 111,094.00 41.92%

1-1-58201-000 Retirement (PERS)

1-1-58212-000 Health and Life Insurance

1-1-58210-000 ER Deferred Comp Contrib

1-1-58202-000 Unemployment Insurance

1-1-58221-000 Workers' Comp Insurance

1-1-58220-000 FICA/Medicare PR Taxes

1-1-58215-000 HRA-VEBA Contribution

MATERIALS & SERVICES

1-1-58203-000 Physicals and Vaccinations

E1 Sub Totals:

1-1-60223-001 Administrative Expenses

1-1-60222-000 Office Supplies

1-1-60223-002 Licenses and Fees

1-1-60410-000 Membership Dues

1-1-60380-000 Mileage Reimbursements

1-1-60370-000 Property & Casualty Insurance

1-1-60220-000 Printing

1-1-60490-000 Hiring Processes, CS, Backgrounds

1-1-60430-001 Advertising

1-1-60412-000 Books & Subscriptions

1-1-60491-000 Postage and Shipping

1-1-60270-000 Contractual & Professional Serv

1-2 RESPONSE SERVICES

PERSONNEL SERVICES

1-2-52130-000 Fire Captains

Administration Total

E2 Sub Totals:

1-2-55140-000 Deputy Chief

1-2-52151-000 Firefighters

1-2-52140-000 Fire Engineers

1-2-55142-000 Battalion Chiefs

1-2-58192-000 Overtime; Operations

1-2-55147-000 Administrative Assistant

1-2-58193-000 Out of Classification

1-2-58192-002 Overtime; OSFM Conflagrations

1-2-58192-001 Overtime; FLSA Premium Pay

Overtime; Comm Care Team

1-2-58195-000 EMS Incentive

1-2-58194-007 Ed Incentive

Page 2



 Budget Amount  Period Amount  YTD Amount  YTD Var 
 Encumbered 

Amount 
 Available 

Percent 

Available

98,000.00$                 0.00 2,587.65 95,412.35 0.00 95,412.35 97.36%

97,000.00$                 0.00 98,636.35 -1,636.35 0.00 -1,636.35 -1.69%

5,000.00$                   255.00 2,040.00 2,960.00 0.00 2,960.00 59.20%

8,000.00$                   0.00 3,086.76 4,913.24 0.00 4,913.24 61.42%

1-2-58200-000 Vacation Payouts 50,000.00$                 0.00 106,645.95 -56,645.95 0.00 -56,645.95 -113.29%

1,590,000.00$            99,801.66 839,193.05 750,806.95 0.00 750,806.95 47.22%

185,000.00$               12,978.53 119,927.90 65,072.10 0.00 65,072.10 35.17%

1,350,000.00$            100,961.65 836,147.87 513,852.13 0.00 513,852.13 38.06%

265,000.00$               21,050.91 155,857.37 109,142.63 0.00 109,142.63 41.19%

540,000.00$               34,277.79 284,672.24 255,327.76 0.00 255,327.76 47.28%

164,000.00$               12,851.91 107,980.84 56,019.16 0.00 56,019.16 34.16%

11,195,000.00$          737,369.69$               6,149,441.43$            5,045,558.57$            -$                           5,045,558.57$         45.07%

40,000.00$                 703.00 772.00 39,228.00 0.00 39,228.00 98.07%

3,000.00$                   0.00 180.00 2,820.00 0.00 2,820.00 94.00%

1-2-60223-003 Medical Supplies & Equipment 80,000.00$                 7,916.09 50,011.03 29,988.97 5,462.18 24,526.79 30.66%

5,000.00$                   224.98 1,813.09 3,186.91 0.00 3,186.91 63.74%

12,000.00$                 252.98 5,100.32 6,899.68 0.00 6,899.68 57.50%

70,000.00$                 3,812.60 21,168.26 48,831.74 3,545.38 45,286.36 64.69%

60,500.00$                 29,975.00 36,355.00 24,145.00 14,520.00 9,625.00 15.91%

12,000.00$                 345.11 5,919.73 6,080.27 1,059.18 5,021.09 41.84%

29,500.00$                 233.94 5,224.96 24,275.04 5,443.50 18,831.54 63.84%

34,000.00$                 0.00 25,658.44 8,341.56 0.00 8,341.56 24.53%

6,000.00$                   270.00 6,762.65 -762.65 0.00 -762.65 -12.71%

7,000.00$                   0.00 3,272.63 3,727.37 0.00 3,727.37 53.25%

18,000.00$                 0.00 13,184.93 4,815.07 0.00 4,815.07 26.75%

47,000.00$                 0.00 10,366.48 36,633.52 0.00 36,633.52 77.94%

1-2-60267-000 Community Care Program 10,000.00$                 612.17 1,667.53 8,332.47 0.00 8,332.47 83.32%

17,500.00$                 0.00 15,036.10 2,463.90 0.00 2,463.90 14.08%

1,500.00$                   0.00 640.00 860.00 0.00 860.00 57.33%

3,000.00$                   196.50 5,528.68 -2,528.68 1,056.00 -3,584.68 -119.49%

1-2-60500-000 STUDENT FF / VOL GROUP

1-2-65001-000 Physicals/Vac/Backgrounds 4,000.00$                   0.00 3,650.00 350.00 226.00 124.00 3.10%

1-2-65003-000 Uniforms and Personal Protective Equip 15,000.00$                 0.00 26,634.25 -11,634.25 25,269.75 -36,904.00 -246.03%

1-2-65005-000 Student Firefighter Program 47,000.00$                 360.55 16,191.54 30,808.46 11,559.00 19,249.46 40.96%

1-2-65007-000 Vol Length of Serv Prg (LOSAP) 2,000.00$                   0.00 200.00 1,800.00 0.00 1,800.00 90.00%

1-2-65010-000 Scholarship Donations 1,000.00$                   0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 100.00%

1-2-65011-000 Advertising and Marketing 2,000.00$                   0.00 3,000.00 -1,000.00 0.00 -1,000.00 -50.00%

527,000.00$               44,902.92$                 258,337.62$               268,662.38$               68,140.99$                200,521.39$            38.05%

11,722,000.00$          782,272.61$               6,407,779.05$            5,314,220.95$            68,140.99$                5,246,079.96$         44.75%

1-2-58197-010 Technology Stipend

1-2-58197-000 Holiday Pay

1-2-58196-000 Longevity Pay

1-2-58210-000 ER Deferred Comp Contrib

1-2-58201-000 Retirement (PERS)

1-2-58199-000 Duty Accrual Payout

1-2-58215-000 HRA-VEBA Contribution

1-2-58212-000 Health and Life Insurance

MATERIALS & SERVICES

1-2-58203-000 Physicals and Vaccinations

E1 Sub Totals:

1-2-58221-000 Workers' Comp Insurance

1-2-58220-000 FICA/Medicare PR Taxes

1-2-60223-007 Operational General Supplies

1-2-60223-002 Licenses and Fees

1-2-60225-000 FIRE SUPPRESSION

1-2-60224-000 Special Projects

1-2-60225-003 Apparatus Equipment

1-2-60225-002 Hose and Appliances

1-2-60225-001 Personal Protective Equipment

1-2-60254-000 M&R; Emergency Response Equip

E2 Sub Totals:

1-2-60412-000 Books & Subscriptions

1-2-60225-005 Specialty Equipment

1-2-60225-004 Safety Equipment

1-2-60225-008 Equip for New Apparatus

1-2-60225-007 Rehabilitation and Consumables

1-2-60225-006 Technical Rescue Equipment

Response Services Total

1-2-60410-000 Membership Dues

1-2-60270-000 Contractual & Professional Serv

Page 3



 Budget Amount  Period Amount  YTD Amount  YTD Var 
 Encumbered 

Amount 
 Available 

Percent 

Available

Dept

142,000.00$               10,880.00 78,880.00 63,120.00 0.00 63,120.00 44.45%

279,000.00$               20,265.63 137,840.33 141,159.67 0.00 141,159.67 50.59%

Administrative Assistant 53,000.00$                 3,864.01 28,952.04 24,047.96 0.00 24,047.96 45.37%

Risk Reduction Captain 115,000.00$               8,734.40 63,324.47 51,675.53 0.00 51,675.53 44.94%

Fuels Reduction Team 200,000.00$               0.00 0.00 200,000.00 0.00 200,000.00 100.00%

10,000.00$                 117.09 4,856.59 5,143.41 0.00 5,143.41 51.43%

37,000.00$                 2,986.00 21,845.00 15,155.00 0.00 15,155.00 40.96%

7,000.00$                   0.00 0.00 7,000.00 0.00 7,000.00 100.00%

5,000.00$                   425.00 2,975.00 2,025.00 0.00 2,025.00 40.50%

30,000.00$                 1,542.50 12,970.00 17,030.00 0.00 17,030.00 56.77%

8,000.00$                   0.00 0.00 8,000.00 0.00 8,000.00 100.00%

1-3-58200-000 Vacation Payouts 5,000.00$                   0.00 6,800.00 -1,800.00 0.00 -1,800.00 -36.00%

165,000.00$               11,328.53 82,292.09 82,707.91 0.00 82,707.91 50.13%

23,000.00$                 1,548.69 10,579.47 12,420.53 0.00 12,420.53 54.00%

160,000.00$               12,183.96 97,993.63 62,006.37 0.00 62,006.37 38.75%

27,000.00$                 3,007.46 20,796.04 6,203.96 0.00 6,203.96 22.98%

52,000.00$                 3,665.65 27,221.77 24,778.23 0.00 24,778.23 47.65%

3,000.00$                   90.42 690.96 2,309.04 0.00 2,309.04 76.97%

1,321,000.00$            80,639.34$                 598,017.39$               722,982.61$               -$                           722,982.61$            54.73%

3,000.00$                   0.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00 100.00%

4,000.00$                   0.00 145.00 3,855.00 0.00 3,855.00 96.38%

2,000.00$                   0.00 125.00 1,875.00 0.00 1,875.00 93.75%

10,000.00$                 0.00 2,478.53 7,521.47 0.00 7,521.47 75.21%

Community Risk Reduction 85,000.00$                 0.00 29,234.64 55,765.36 2,930.41 52,834.95 62.16%

10,000.00$                 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 100.00%

3,000.00$                   0.00 420.00 2,580.00 0.00 2,580.00 86.00%

3,500.00$                   0.00 180.00 3,320.00 0.00 3,320.00 94.86%

120,500.00$               -$                            32,583.17$                 87,916.83$                 2,930.41$                  84,986.42$              70.53%

1,441,500.00$            80,639.34$                 630,600.56$               810,899.44$               2,930.41$                  807,969.03$            56.05%

Dept

117,000.00$               8,950.40 62,652.80 54,347.20 0.00 54,347.20 46.45%

1-4-55145-000 Training Luitenant 94,000.00$                 3,321.27 3,321.27 90,678.73 0.00 90,678.73 96.47%

62,000.00$                 820.66 31,819.22 30,180.78 0.00 30,180.78 48.68%

18,000.00$                 508.50 2,392.50 15,607.50 0.00 15,607.50 86.71%

1,000.00$                   85.00 510.00 490.00 0.00 490.00 49.00%

1-4-58200-000 Vacation Payouts 1,000.00$                   0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 100.00%

60,500.00$                 2,887.73 21,413.73 39,086.27 0.00 39,086.27 64.61%

4,500.00$                   160.78 610.59 3,889.41 0.00 3,889.41 86.43%

56,000.00$                 1,978.66 13,952.15 42,047.85 0.00 42,047.85 75.09%

9,000.00$                   837.52 4,857.88 4,142.12 0.00 4,142.12 46.02%

1-3 RISK REDUCTION

PERSONNEL SERVICES

1-3-58196-000 Longevity Pay

1-3-58194-000 Incentive Pays

1-3-58192-000 Overtime

1-3-53153-000 Deputy Fire Marshals

1-3-53150-000 Division Chief / FM

1-3-55147-000

1-3-57130-000

1-3-57140-000

1-3-58199-000 Duty Accrual Payout

1-3-58198-001 Fire Investigator On Call Pay

1-3-58197-010 Technology Stipend

1-3-58210-000 ER Deferred Comp Contrib

1-3-58201-000 Retirement (PERS)

1-3-58215-000 HRA-VEBA Contribution

1-3-58212-000 Health and Life Insurance

MATERIALS & SERVICES

1-3-58203-000 Physicals and Vaccinations

E1 Sub Totals:

1-3-58221-000 Workers' Comp Insurance

Risk Reduction Total

E2 Sub Totals:

1-4 TRAINING

PERSONNEL SERVICES

Contractual & Professional Serv

1-3-60265-000

1-3-60270-000

1-3-60223-002 Licenses and Fees

1-3-60220-000 Printing

1-3-60223-004 Supplies

1-3-58220-000 FICA/Medicare PR Taxes

1-3-60412-000 Books & Subscriptions

1-3-60410-000 Membership Dues

1-4-58195-000 Incentive Pays

1-4-58192-000 Overtime; Non Trng Dept Staff

1-4-58201-000 Retirement (PERS)

1-4-58197-010 Technology Stipend

1-4-55143-000 Division Chief

1-4-58212-000 Health and Life Insurance

1-4-58210-000 ER Deferred Comp Contrib

1-4-58215-000 HRA-VEBA Contribution

Page 4



 Budget Amount  Period Amount  YTD Amount  YTD Var 
 Encumbered 

Amount 
 Available 

Percent 

Available

23,000.00$                 1,033.63 7,558.55 15,441.45 0.00 15,441.45 67.14%

5,000.00$                   408.46 3,040.24 1,959.76 0.00 1,959.76 39.20%

451,000.00$               20,992.61$                 152,128.93$               298,871.07$               -$                           298,871.07$            66.27%

1,000.00$                   0.00 500.00 500.00 0.00 500.00 50.00%

500.00$                      0.00 92.50 407.50 0.00 407.50 81.50%

17,500.00$                 0.00 3,797.34 13,702.66 1,439.57 12,263.09 70.07%

5,000.00$                   0.00 1,632.00 3,368.00 0.00 3,368.00 67.36%

2,000.00$                   399.81 468.40 1,531.60 0.00 1,531.60 76.58%

14,000.00$                 0.00 2,337.76 11,662.24 0.00 11,662.24 83.30%

20,000.00$                 0.00 0.00 20,000.00 0.00 20,000.00 100.00%

1,000.00$                   0.00 455.00 545.00 0.00 545.00 54.50%

9,000.00$                   8,218.50 8,218.50 781.50 18,484.00 -17,702.50 -196.69%

10,000.00$                 1,070.66 6,754.40 3,245.60 0.00 3,245.60 32.46%

50,000.00$                 3,878.00 16,953.25 33,046.75 0.00 33,046.75 66.09%

2,500.00$                   554.00 579.00 1,921.00 0.00 1,921.00 76.84%

50,000.00$                 0.00 432.00 49,568.00 0.00 49,568.00 99.14%

10,000.00$                 0.00 325.00 9,675.00 0.00 9,675.00 96.75%

1-4-60455-005 2,000.00$                   0.00 2,959.13 -959.13 0.00 -959.13 -47.96%

5,000.00$                   960.00 3,942.44 1,057.56 0.00 1,057.56 21.15%

10,000.00$                 872.17 3,232.48 6,767.52 0.00 6,767.52 67.68%

6,000.00$                   0.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 100.00%

215,500.00$               15,953.14$                 52,679.20$                 162,820.80$               19,923.57$                142,897.23$            66.31%

666,500.00$               36,945.75$                 204,808.13$               461,691.87$               19,923.57$                441,768.30$            66.28%

Dept

74,000.00$                 5,678.40 41,168.45 32,831.55 0.00 32,831.55 44.37%

1-5-58100-000 Part Time; Logistics Support 20,000.00$                 5,936.00 15,545.00 4,455.00 0.00 4,455.00 22.28%

1-5-58192-000 Overtime 5,000.00$                   0.00 100.63 4,899.37 0.00 4,899.37 97.99%

2,000.00$                   610.00 2,447.00 -447.00 0.00 -447.00 -22.35%

1,000.00$                   85.00 1,105.00 -105.00 0.00 -105.00 -10.50%

1-5-58200-000 Vacation Payouts 2,000.00$                   0.00 453.01 1,546.99 0.00 1,546.99 77.35%

17,000.00$                 2,311.73 9,746.50 7,253.50 0.00 7,253.50 42.67%

2,000.00$                   308.00 1,259.20 740.80 0.00 740.80 37.04%

39,000.00$                 574.75 21,674.90 17,325.10 0.00 17,325.10 44.42%

6,500.00$                   999.11 5,917.90 582.10 0.00 582.10 8.96%

7,500.00$                   927.44 4,042.73 3,457.27 0.00 3,457.27 46.10%

1,000.00$                   22.83 136.42 863.58 0.00 863.58 86.36%

177,000.00$               17,453.26$                 103,596.74$               73,403.26$                 -$                           73,403.26$              41.47%

60,000.00$                 2,380.63 17,926.59 42,073.41 3,753.00 38,320.41 63.87%

35,000.00$                 3,353.53 20,582.65 14,417.35 295.02 14,122.33 40.35%

1-4-58221-000 Workers' Comp Insurance

1-4-58220-000 FICA/Medicare PR Taxes

1-4-60223-002 Licenses and Fees

MATERIALS & SERVICES

1-4-58203-000 Physicals and Vaccinations

E1 Sub Totals:

1-4-60254-000 M&R; Training Props & Equipment

1-4-60223-012 Training & Safety Supplies

1-4-60223-014 Training Props & Equipment

1-4-60270-000 Contractual & Professional Serv

1-4-60265-000 Health and Wellness

1-4-60449-000 Meeting Travel Expenses

1-4-60412-000 Books & Subscriptions

1-4-60410-000 Membership Dues

1-4-60455-003 Training/Conferences; Op's

1-4-60455-002 Training/Conferences; Board

1-4-60455-001 Training/Conferences; Adm & Ldrship

1-4-60455-006 Training/Conferences; Student's & Vol's

1-4-60455-004 Training/Conferences; FLS

Training/Conferences; Risk Reduction

Training Total

E2 Sub Totals:

1-4-60455-008 Trng/Conferences; EMS

1-5 SUPPORT SERVICES

PERSONNEL SERVICES

1-5-57125-000 Facilities Technician

1-5-58210-000 ER Deferred Comp Contrib

1-5-58195-000 Incentive Pays

1-5-58201-000 Retirement (PERS)

1-5-58197-010 Technology Stipend

1-5-58220-000 FICA/Medicare PR Taxes

1-5-58215-000 HRA-VEBA Contribution

1-5-58212-000 Health and Life Insurance

MATERIALS & SERVICES

1-5-58213-000 Uniforms

E1 Sub Totals:

1-5-58221-000 Workers' Comp Insurance

1-5-60221-000 Janitorial Supplies and Laundry

1-4-60455-007 Training/Conferences; Tech/Data Analytics

Page 5



 Budget Amount  Period Amount  YTD Amount  YTD Var 
 Encumbered 

Amount 
 Available 

Percent 

Available

1-5-60223-006 Facility Maintenance Supplies 5,000.00$                   523.41 3,124.48 1,875.52 15.49 1,860.03 37.20%

1-5-60223-007 Logistical Supplies 2,000.00$                   21.99 180.82 1,819.18 0.00 1,819.18 90.96%

6,000.00$                   389.70 1,237.88 4,762.12 0.00 4,762.12 79.37%

20,000.00$                 0.00 6,516.10 13,483.90 151.05 13,332.85 66.66%

13,000.00$                 200.02 2,019.73 10,980.27 20.98 10,959.29 84.30%

150,000.00$               4,731.49 49,949.68 100,050.32 953.59 99,096.73 66.06%

300,000.00$               6,239.10 105,106.74 194,893.26 269.81 194,623.45 64.87%

15,000.00$                 341.31 4,520.23 10,479.77 0.00 10,479.77 69.87%

47,000.00$                 296.17 7,339.73 39,660.27 21.09 39,639.18 84.34%

5,000.00$                   149.35 546.12 4,453.88 13.98 4,439.90 88.80%

14,000.00$                 0.00 1,754.66 12,245.34 0.00 12,245.34 87.47%

16,000.00$                 793.67 2,978.29 13,021.71 0.00 13,021.71 81.39%

11,000.00$                 65.80 920.38 10,079.62 0.00 10,079.62 91.63%

14,000.00$                 2,421.16 19,023.29 -5,023.29 0.00 -5,023.29 -35.88%

3,000.00$                   0.00 84.60 2,915.40 0.00 2,915.40 97.18%

7,000.00$                   260.00 6,982.92 17.08 0.00 17.08 0.24%

10,000.00$                 0.00 7,903.75 2,096.25 27.53 2,068.72 20.69%

17,000.00$                 1,666.00 10,014.42 6,985.58 0.00 6,985.58 41.09%

2,000.00$                   517.50 2,079.50 -79.50 0.00 -79.50 -3.98%

10,000.00$                 0.00 1,647.22 8,352.78 0.00 8,352.78 83.53%

5,000.00$                   0.00 118.00 4,882.00 0.00 4,882.00 97.64%

35,000.00$                 3,603.00 17,492.62 17,507.38 0.00 17,507.38 50.02%

23,000.00$                 1,898.30 11,998.72 11,001.28 0.00 11,001.28 47.83%

14,000.00$                 414.36 2,210.31 11,789.69 0.00 11,789.69 84.21%

14,000.00$                 266.59 2,203.12 11,796.88 0.00 11,796.88 84.26%

14,000.00$                 3,039.91 9,772.91 4,227.09 0.00 4,227.09 30.19%

10,000.00$                 437.87 3,564.62 6,435.38 0.00 6,435.38 64.35%

23,000.00$                 2,338.60 12,797.59 10,202.41 0.00 10,202.41 44.36%

5,000.00$                   0.00 663.19 4,336.81 0.00 4,336.81 86.74%

23,000.00$                 2,429.74 10,831.40 12,168.60 0.00 12,168.60 52.91%

15,000.00$                 1,527.72 8,806.77 6,193.23 0.00 6,193.23 41.29%

37,000.00$                 3,230.65 19,629.87 17,370.13 0.00 17,370.13 46.95%

5,000.00$                   336.66 1,762.90 3,237.10 0.00 3,237.10 64.74%

985,000.00$               43,874.23$                 374,291.80$               610,708.20$               5,521.54$                  605,186.66$            61.44%

1,162,000.00$            61,327.49$                 477,888.54$               684,111.46$               5,521.54$                  678,589.92$            58.40%

Dept

109,000.00$               8,316.80 60,296.81 48,703.19 0.00 48,703.19 44.68%

4,000.00$                   292.00 2,190.00 1,810.00 0.00 1,810.00 45.25%

3,000.00$                   0.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00 100.00%

1,000.00$                   0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 100.00%

1-7-58200-000 Vacation Payout 5,000.00$                   0.00 6,237.60 -1,237.60 0.00 -1,237.60 -24.75%

18,000.00$                 1,404.10 10,228.97 7,771.03 0.00 7,771.03 43.17%

9,500.00$                   630.00 4,410.00 5,090.00 0.00 5,090.00 53.58%

16,500.00$                 1,323.46 10,654.72 5,845.28 0.00 5,845.28 35.43%

1-5-60250-000 M&R; Apparatus & Vehicles

1-5-60251-113 Building & Grounds; SV Station

1-5-60251-112 Building & Grounds; DB Station

1-5-60251-111 Building & Grounds; CP Station

1-5-60223-008 Station Consumables

1-5-60230-000 Fuel and Lubricants

1-5-60223-016 Facility Supplies

1-5-60223-015 Furnishings & Appliances

1-5-60251-114 Building & Grounds; GH Station

1-5-60251-120 Building & Grounds; TRNG Center

1-5-60251-117 Building & Grounds; TR Station

1-5-60251-118 Building & Grounds; SNC Station

1-5-60251-110 Building & Grounds; WC Station

1-5-60254-000 M&R; District Equipment

1-5-60251-121 Building & Grounds; ADM Bldg

1-5-60255-000 M&R; Appliances/Furnishings

1-5-60251-116 Building & Grounds; EP Station

1-5-60251-115 Building & Grounds; AL Station

1-5-60500-120 Utilities; TC

1-5-60500-117 Utilities; TR

1-5-60500-110 Utilities; WC

1-5-60500-113 Utilities; SV

1-5-60500-112 Utilities; DB

1-5-60500-111 Utilities; CP

1-5-60500-118 Utilities; SNC

1-7-58201-000 Retirement (PERS)

1-7-58197-010 Technology Stipend

1-7-58212-000 Health and Life Insurances

1-7-58210-000 ER Deferred Comp Contrib

1-5-60500-121 Utilities; AB

1-5-60251-123 Building & Grounds; FS Center

1-5-60500-123 Utilities; FSC

1-7-58196-000 Longevity Pay

1-7-58194-000 Incentive Pays

1-7-51145-000 Info Tech Administrator

1-7 TECHNOLOGY

PERSONNEL SERVICES

Support Services Total

E2 Sub Totals:

1-5-60500-116 Utilities; EP

1-5-60500-115 Utilities; AL

1-5-60500-114 Utilities; GH

Page 6



 Budget Amount  Period Amount  YTD Amount  YTD Var 
 Encumbered 

Amount 
 Available 

Percent 

Available

4,000.00$                   372.16 2,581.57 1,418.43 0.00 1,418.43 35.46%

9,000.00$                   653.44 5,221.49 3,778.51 0.00 3,778.51 41.98%

1,000.00$                   8.56 62.57 937.43 0.00 937.43 93.74%

180,000.00$               13,000.52$                 101,883.73$               78,116.27$                 -$                           78,116.27$              43.40%

90,500.00$                 481.69 32,665.22 57,834.78 0.00 57,834.78 63.91%

20,000.00$                 0.00 12,506.21 7,493.79 0.00 7,493.79 37.47%

189,000.00$               699.86 99,100.01 89,899.99 15,381.56 74,518.43 39.43%

10,000.00$                 2,200.00 2,200.00 7,800.00 0.00 7,800.00 78.00%

7,500.00$                   55.60 2,647.57 4,852.43 0.00 4,852.43 64.70%

10,000.00$                 549.20 1,709.70 8,290.30 0.00 8,290.30 82.90%

40,000.00$                 2,707.91 14,861.94 25,138.06 0.00 25,138.06 62.85%

367,000.00$               6,694.26$                   165,690.65$               201,309.35$               15,381.56$                185,927.79$            50.66%

547,000.00$               19,694.78$                 267,574.38$               279,425.62$               15,381.56$                264,044.06$            48.27%

Dept

1,395,000.00$            0.00 1,395,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

1,395,000.00$            -$                            1,395,000.00$            -$                            -$                           -$                         0.00%

1,041,000.00$            0.00 0.00 1,041,000.00 0.00 1,041,000.00 100.00%

1,041,000.00$            -$                            -$                            1,041,000.00$            -$                           1,041,000.00$         100.00%

394,000.00$               198,000.00 394,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

55,000.00$                 26,271.30 54,590.80 409.20 0.00 409.20 0.74%

449,000.00$               224,271.30$               448,590.80$               409.20$                      -$                           409.20$                   0.09%

4,164,000.00$            0.00 0.00 4,164,000.00 0.00 4,164,000.00 100.00%

4,164,000.00$            -$                            -$                            4,164,000.00$            -$                           4,164,000.00$         100.00%

7,049,000.00$            224,271.30$               1,843,590.80$            5,205,409.20$            -$                           5,205,409.20$         73.85%

24,796,000.00$          1,310,374.36$            10,940,722.12$          13,855,277.88$          241,953.71$              13,613,324.17$       54.90%

1-7-58215-000 HRA-VEBA Contribution

E1 Sub Totals:

1-7-60241-000 Technical Support

1-7-58221-000 Workers' Comp Insurance

1-7-58220-000 FICA/Medicare PR Taxes

1-7-60223-013 Supplies; Communication Device

MATERIALS & SERVICES

1-7-60223-011 Supplies; Computers and Tech

1-9-80070-000 Operating Contingency

E4 Sub Totals:

1-7-60253-000 M&R; Communication Devices

1-7-60252-000 M&R; Office and Tech Equip

1-7-60240-000 Licenses and Subscriptions

1-7-60290-000 Communication Services

1-9 NON-DEPARTMENTAL

TRANSFERS

1-9-90300-000 Trsf to Capital Projects Fund

Technology Total

E2 Sub Totals:

OPERATING CONTINGENCY

1-9-80010-000 Debt Service Principal

E5 Sub Totals:

UEFB

1-9-99000-000 Unapp Ending Fund Balance

E6 Sub Totals:

1-9-80011-000 Debt Service Interest

General Fund Total

Non-Departmental Total

E8 Sub Totals:

DEBT SERVICE

Page 7



 Budget Amount  Period Amount  YTD Amount  YTD Var 
 Encumbered 

Amount 
 Available 

Percent 

Available

Fund

163,000.00$               0.00 139,183.06 23,816.94 0.00 23,816.94 14.61%

625,000.00$               0.00 164,197.14 460,802.86 430,474.00 30,328.86 4.85%

1,000.00$                   0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 100.00%

2,150,000.00$            0.00 2,136,536.66 13,463.34 5,931.00 7,532.34 0.35%

2,939,000.00$            -$                            2,439,916.86$            499,083.14$               436,405.00$              62,678.14$              2.13%

139,800.00$               0.00 0.00 139,800.00 0.00 139,800.00 100.00%

139,800.00$               -$                            -$                            139,800.00$               -$                           139,800.00$            100.00%

3,786,200.00$            0.00 0.00 3,786,200.00 0.00 3,786,200.00 100.00%

3,786,200.00$            -$                            -$                            3,786,200.00$            -$                           3,786,200.00$         100.00%

6,865,000.00$            -$                            2,439,916.86$            4,425,083.14$            436,405.00$              3,988,678.14$         58.10%

31,661,000.00$          1,310,374.36$            13,380,638.98$          18,280,361.02$          678,358.71$              17,602,002.31$       55.60%Report Totals:

Capital Fund Total

E9 Sub Totals:

OPERATING CONTINGENCY

5-8-80070-000 Contingency

E3 Sub Totals:

5-8-70533-000 Bldg Const and Improvements

RESERVE FUND BALANCE

5-8-99000-000 Capital Reserve

E5 Sub Totals:

5-8-70532-000 Land and Improvements

5-8-70531-000 Apparatus and Vehicles

5 CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

CAPITAL OUTLAY

5-8-70530-000 Department Equipment

Page 8



Jackson County Fire 

District 3
Period: 07 - JANUARY

Fiscal Year 2023-2024

Account No Vendor Description GL Date Check No Amount

GENERAL FUND

ADMINISTRATION      

1-1-58212-000  Regence Blue Cross February Health Insurance Premium 01/18/2024 0 11,096.10

1-1-58212-000  Special Districts February Dental, Life, AD&D Insurances 01/11/2024 45323 1,094.85

1-1-58214-000  Arch Insurance Paid Leave Oregon Premium for 4Q 2023 01/11/2024 45268 12,752.81

1-1-58221-000  Oregon Department of Revenue 4th Qtr 2023 WBF Balance 01/11/2024 0 0.62

1-1-60220-000  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards MC Visa; Office Supplies 01/13/2024 0 116.54

1-1-60222-000  ODP Business Solutions, LLC Ink Cartridges (8) 01/11/2024 45305 155.24

1-1-60222-000  ODP Business Solutions, LLC Office Supplies 01/11/2024 45305 79.80

1-1-60222-000  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards MC Visa; Printer Cartridge for CP 01/13/2024 0 44.99

1-1-60222-000  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards SD Visa; Etsy-Stamp for Return Addresses 01/13/2024 0 41.42

1-1-60222-000  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards MC Visa; Office Supplies 01/13/2024 0 7.99

1-1-60223-001  SOLV 2023 W-2's and 1099's 01/22/2024 45339 97.45

1-1-60223-001  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards JA Visa; Christmas Party Decorations 01/13/2024 0 36.90

1-1-60223-001  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards MF Visa; Comm Care Christmas Cards 01/13/2024 0 8.94

1-1-60223-001  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards MC Visa; Food/Supplies for Strat Plan Mtg & Christmas Luncheon 01/13/2024 0 561.98

1-1-60223-001  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards SD Visa; E21 Station Photo for C Shift 01/13/2024 0 2.94

1-1-60223-001  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards MC Visa; 2024 District Member Birthday Cards 01/13/2024 0 150.40

1-1-60223-001  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards SD Visa; District Christmas Cards 01/13/2024 0 383.20

1-1-60223-001  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards JA Visa; Christmas Party Decorations 01/13/2024 0 59.98

1-1-60223-001  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards MC Visa; FD3 Banner Backdrop Stand 01/13/2024 0 95.99

1-1-60223-001  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards SM Visa; Food Items for Admin Christmas Luncheon 01/13/2024 0 36.96

1-1-60223-001  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards JA Visa; Christmas Party Table Covers 01/13/2024 0 18.75

1-1-60223-002  PacificSource Administrators Flex Spending Annual Renewal Fee 01/18/2024 45329 250.00

1-1-60223-002  PacificSource Administrators Flex Spending Admin Fee 01/18/2024 45329 85.00

1-1-60270-000  Preskenis Perrin Associates, Inc. EAP Services for January 01/11/2024 45309 2,554.79

1-1-60270-000  Secretary of State 2022/23 FY Audit Filing 01/11/2024 45319 350.00

1-1-60380-000 Andrew Cardinal Mileage Reimbursement (Oct-Dec) 01/11/2024 45275 116.59

1-1-60380-000 Lorin Myers Reimb Mileage for Chaplaincy (Oct-Dec) 01/11/2024 45302 72.80

1-1-60410-000  Central Point Chamber of Commerce Annual CP Chamber Membership Dues 01/11/2024 45277 400.00

1-1-60410-000  Rogue Valley Council of Governments Annual Membership Dues 01/11/2024 45315 155.00

1-1-60412-000  Rogue Valley Times (5) Annual Newspaper Subscriptions 01/11/2024 45317 1,320.00

1-1-60412-000  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards JuB Visa; Dropbox Subscription 01/13/2024 0 6.51

1-1-60412-000  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards SD Visa; Annual Canva Pro Subscription 01/13/2024 0 239.99

1-1-60430-001  EO Media Group January BOD Meeting Notice 01/11/2024 45286 44.00

1-1-60430-001  EO Media Group Executive Session Mtg Notice on 1/18/24 01/11/2024 45286 33.00

1-1-60490-000  National Testing Network Background Investigation for FF Candidate Laird 01/11/2024 45304 875.00

Accounts Payable                                             
Transactions by Account and Department

Page 1



Account No Vendor Description GL Date Check No Amount

1-1-60490-000  National Testing Network Background Investigation for FF Candidate English 01/11/2024 45304 875.00

1-1-60490-000  National Testing Network Background Investigation for FF Candidate Smith 01/11/2024 45304 875.00

1-1-60490-000  National Testing Network Background Investigation for FF Candidate Claassen 01/11/2024 45304 875.00

1-1-60490-000  National Testing Network Background Investigation for FF Candidate Marquez 01/11/2024 45304 875.00

1-1-60490-000  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards ML Visa; Ldg for Deputy Chief Candidate Smythe 01/13/2024 0 240.76

1-1-60490-000  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards MH Visa; Lunch for Firefighter Interview Evaluators 01/13/2024 0 40.90

1-1-60490-000  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards ML Visa; Ldg for Deputy Chief Candidate Zinko 01/13/2024 0 240.76

1-1-60490-000  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards ML Visa; Annual Calendly Recruit Subscription 01/13/2024 0 288.00

1-1-60490-000  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards ML Visa; Food for Deputy Chief Hiring Process 01/13/2024 0 220.37

1-1-60491-000  UPS November Shipping Charges 01/11/2024 45325 23.25

1-1-60491-000  UPS October Shipping Charges 01/11/2024 45325 31.18

1-1-60491-000  UPS December Shipping Charges 01/11/2024 45325 1.86

1-1-60491-000  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards MC Visa; Printable Postage Sheets 01/13/2024 0 41.40

1-1-60491-000  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards MC Visa; November Postage Subscription (SendPro) 01/13/2024 0 4.99
           

      Sub Total Dept 1: $37,980.00

RESPONSE SERVICES

1-2-58203-000  Asante Physician Partners Pre-Employ Med/Physical Exam for CCP Candidate Harrison 01/11/2024 45269 703.00

1-2-58212-000  Regence Blue Cross February Health Insurance Premium 01/18/2024 0 96,265.70

1-2-58212-000  Special Districts February Dental, Life, AD&D Insurances 01/11/2024 45323 9,902.17

1-2-60223-003  Airgas USA, LLC December Medical Cylinder Rental (WC) 01/11/2024 45266 297.51

1-2-60223-003  Airgas USA, LLC December Medical Cylinder Rental (CP) 01/11/2024 45266 165.09

1-2-60223-003  Bound Tree Medical, LLC Blood Pressure Cuffs (3) 01/11/2024 45272 119.37

1-2-60223-003  Bound Tree Medical, LLC FilterLine Sets 01/11/2024 45272 173.20

1-2-60223-003  Bound Tree Medical, LLC IV Stabilization Dressing 01/11/2024 45272 181.98

1-2-60223-003  Bound Tree Medical, LLC Larynogoscope Blades 01/11/2024 45272 25.96

1-2-60223-003  Bound Tree Medical, LLC IV Catheters 01/11/2024 45272 598.00

1-2-60223-003  Bound Tree Medical, LLC Cervical Collars (5) 01/11/2024 45272 104.95

1-2-60223-003  Bound Tree Medical, LLC IV Extension Sets 01/11/2024 45272 189.00

1-2-60223-003  Bound Tree Medical, LLC Medical Supplies 01/11/2024 45272 277.17

1-2-60223-003  Life-Assist, Inc. Medical Supplies 01/11/2024 45296 154.88

1-2-60223-003  Life-Assist, Inc. Medical Supplies 01/22/2024 45335 303.55

1-2-60223-003  Mercy Flights Inc. Rocuronium - SO367 01/11/2024 45300 170.00

1-2-60223-003  Mercy Flights Inc. Needles - SO367 01/11/2024 45300 1,100.00

1-2-60223-003  Mercy Flights Inc. Medical Supplies - SO324 01/11/2024 45300 358.65

1-2-60223-003  Mercy Flights Inc. Epinephrine - SO353 01/11/2024 45300 593.65

1-2-60223-003  Mercy Flights Inc. Credit for Return of Nebulizers (50) 01/11/2024 45300 -62.50

1-2-60223-003  Mercy Flights Inc. Bio Hoop w/Hooks - SO324 01/11/2024 45300 194.40

1-2-60223-003  Mercy Flights Inc. Medical Supplies - SO353 01/11/2024 45300 547.34

1-2-60223-003  Mercy Flights Inc. Smart Capnoline Plus - SO324 01/11/2024 45300 595.00

1-2-60223-003  Mercy Flights Inc. Medical Supplies - SO367 01/11/2024 45300 177.20

1-2-60223-003  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards KR Visa; Shears (12) 01/13/2024 0 83.40

1-2-60223-003  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards KR Visa; Tylenol 01/13/2024 0 20.80

Page 2



Account No Vendor Description GL Date Check No Amount

1-2-60223-003  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards MF Visa; Thermometer Ear Covers 01/13/2024 0 11.49

1-2-60223-003  ZOLL Medical Corporation Electrodes 01/22/2024 45342 1,536.00

1-2-60223-007  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards KR Visa; Masking Tape 01/13/2024 0 20.98

1-2-60223-007  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards KR Visa; Padlocks (12) 01/13/2024 0 204.00

1-2-60224-000  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards WC Visa; Batteries (4) for Drone 01/13/2024 0 252.98

1-2-60225-001  Sea Western Fire Fighting Equipment Particulate Blocking Hoods (6) for Stock 01/22/2024 45338 660.64

1-2-60225-001  Sea Western Fire Fighting Equipment Particulate Blocking Hoods (8) for Recruit Academy 01/22/2024 45338 880.86

1-2-60225-001  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards KR Visa; Leather Work Gloves (12) 01/13/2024 0 44.85

1-2-60225-001  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards KR Visa; Leather Work Gloves (36) 01/13/2024 0 128.78

1-2-60225-001  Wholesale Online Group, Corp Firepro Goggles (30) 01/22/2024 45341 2,097.47

1-2-60225-002  Municipal Emergency Svcs 1.75" x 100' Black Fire Suppression Hose (530) 01/11/2024 45301 5,830.00

1-2-60225-002  Municipal Emergency Svcs Couplings for Black Hose (65) 01/11/2024 45301 715.00

1-2-60225-002  Municipal Emergency Svcs 1.75" x 50' Orange Fire Suppression Hose (330) 01/11/2024 45301 8,580.00

1-2-60225-002  Municipal Emergency Svcs 1.75" x 50' Red Fire Suppression Hose (330) 01/11/2024 45301 14,850.00

1-2-60225-003  Cascade Fire Equipment Rake Hoe for Apparatus 01/22/2024 45332 130.00

1-2-60225-003  Grange Co-op Mounting Hardware for Apparatus 01/11/2024 45288 15.21

1-2-60225-003  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards KR Visa; Aluminum Wedges (10) 01/13/2024 0 199.90

1-2-60225-004  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards KR Visa; Flares (72) 01/13/2024 0 233.94

1-2-60225-006  Southern Oregon Embroidery Uniform Jacket Screenprinting (15) for TRT 01/22/2024 45340 180.00

1-2-60225-006  Southern Oregon Embroidery Embroidery/Sew Patches on Bass Pro Bags (5) for TRT 01/22/2024 45340 50.00

1-2-60225-006  Southern Oregon Embroidery Uniform Shirt Screenprinting (5) for TRT 01/22/2024 45340 40.00

1-2-60267-000  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards SD Visa; Comm Care Banner for Fall Prevention 01/13/2024 0 76.50

1-2-60267-000  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards MF Visa; Bed Rail In-Kind Purchase for Patron 01/13/2024 0 78.95

1-2-60267-000  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards MF Visa; Sensory Kits 01/13/2024 0 7.85

1-2-60267-000  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards MF Visa; Drawstring Bags (8) for Sensory Kits 01/13/2024 0 60.00

1-2-60267-000  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards JaP Visa; Heated Blanket In-Kind Purchase for Patron 01/13/2024 0 53.00

1-2-60267-000  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards MF Visa; Bed Sheets In-Kind Purchase for Patron 01/13/2024 0 9.44

1-2-60267-000  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards JaP Visa; Medical In-Kind Purchase for Patron 01/13/2024 0 26.78

1-2-60267-000  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards MF Visa; Toilet Safety Rail In-Kind Purchase for Patron 01/13/2024 0 38.99

1-2-60267-000  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards MF Visa; Sensory Kits 01/13/2024 0 190.67

1-2-60267-000  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards MF Visa; Microwave In-Kind Purchase for Patron 01/13/2024 0 69.99

1-2-60412-000  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards JuB Visa; Trello Board for Change Management 01/13/2024 0 137.50

1-2-60412-000  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards JuB Visa; Blue Cat Forms for Change Management 01/13/2024 0 59.00

1-2-65005-000  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards MC Visa; Student Firefighter Textbooks (2) 01/13/2024 0 360.55
           

      Sub Total Dept 2: $151,070.79

RISK REDUCTION

1-3-58212-000  Regence Blue Cross February Health Insurance Premium 01/18/2024 0 11,719.90

1-3-58212-000  Special Districts February Dental, Life, AD&D Insurances 01/11/2024 45323 1,094.81
           

      Sub Total Dept 3: $12,814.71

Page 3



Account No Vendor Description GL Date Check No Amount

TRAINING

1-4-58212-000  Regence Blue Cross February Health Insurance Premium 01/18/2024 0 1,884.60

1-4-58212-000  Special Districts February Dental, Life, AD&D Insurances 01/11/2024 45323 195.59

1-4-60254-000  Sea Western Fire Fighting Equipment Cleaning Solution for Smoke Generators 01/11/2024 45318 399.81

1-4-60412-000  Across the Street Productions Blue Card Group Discount 01/11/2024 45265 -900.00

1-4-60412-000  Across the Street Productions FD1 Blue Card New Registers (5) 01/11/2024 45265 1,732.50

1-4-60412-000  Across the Street Productions Blue Card Annual Career Renewal (24) 01/11/2024 45265 3,000.00

1-4-60412-000  Across the Street Productions FD4 Blue Card New Registers (4) 01/11/2024 45265 1,386.00

1-4-60412-000  Across the Street Productions Blue Card Annual Instructor Renewal (3) 01/11/2024 45265 3,000.00

1-4-60449-000 Mike Hussey Meals at OFCA Roundtable Session in Eugene 01/22/2024 45333 59.00

1-4-60449-000  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards RD Visa; Ldg in Sunriver at DPSST Mtg (Add'l Night) 01/13/2024 0 132.40

1-4-60449-000  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards MH Visa; Ldg for HB2522 Task Force Mtg 01/13/2024 0 328.84

1-4-60449-000  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards WC Visa; Reg for OFCA Roundtable Session in Eugene 01/13/2024 0 75.00

1-4-60449-000  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards RD Visa; Reg at OFCA Roundtable Session in Eugene 01/13/2024 0 75.00

1-4-60449-000  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards MH Visa; Ldg for DPSST Roundtable Session 01/13/2024 0 292.42

1-4-60449-000  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards MH Visa; Fuel for HB2522 Task Force Mtg 01/13/2024 0 108.00

1-4-60455-001 Margie Calvert Meals at SDAO Annual Conference in Seaside 01/11/2024 45274 129.00

1-4-60455-001 Mike Hussey Meals at SDAO Annual Conference in Seaside 01/11/2024 45292 160.00

1-4-60455-001 Stacy Maxwell Meals at SDAO Annual Conference in Seaside 01/11/2024 45297 129.00

1-4-60455-001  Professional Development Academy NACo High Performance Leadership Tuition for Deutschman 01/11/2024 45310 1,500.00

1-4-60455-001  Professional Development Academy NACo High Performance Leadership Tuition for Dickerson 01/11/2024 45310 1,500.00

1-4-60455-001  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards MH Visa; Reg at SDAO Annual Conf in Seaside 01/13/2024 0 230.00

1-4-60455-001  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards MC Visa; Reg at SDAO Annual Conf in Seaside 01/13/2024 0 230.00

1-4-60455-002 Bill Leavens Meals at SDAO Annual Conference in Seaside 01/11/2024 45295 112.00

1-4-60455-002 Harvey Tonn Meals at SDAO Annual Conference in Seaside 01/11/2024 45324 112.00

1-4-60455-002  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards MC Visa; Reg at SDAO Annual Conf in Seaside for Leavens 01/13/2024 0 330.00

1-4-60455-006  Rogue Interagency Training Association Reg at RITA Academy for Vol Keck 01/22/2024 45337 960.00

1-4-60455-007  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards SD Visa; Ldg at Tech Summit Int'l in TX 01/13/2024 0 766.21

1-4-60455-007  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards SD Visa; Uber Fare to/from Tech Summit Int'l in TX 01/13/2024 0 45.96

1-4-60455-007  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards SD Visa; Baggage Fees to/from Tech Summit Int'l in TX 01/13/2024 0 60.00

      Sub Total Dept 4: $18,033.33

SUPPORT SERVICES      

1-5-58212-000  Regence Blue Cross January Credit Health Insurance Premium - Robison 01/18/2024 0 -1,572.70

1-5-58212-000  Regence Blue Cross February Health Insurance Premium 01/18/2024 0 1,884.60

1-5-58212-000  Special Districts February Dental, Life, AD&D Insurances 01/11/2024 45323 364.95

1-5-58213-000  Buffaloe Graphics Uniform Mesh Hats w/Embroidery (30) 01/11/2024 45273 450.00

1-5-58213-000  Buffaloe Graphics Uniform 1/4 Zip Sweatshirt Embroidery 01/11/2024 45273 62.00

1-5-58213-000  Buffaloe Graphics Uniform Vests (2) for CCP 01/11/2024 45273 96.00

1-5-58213-000  Buffaloe Graphics Uniform Beanies w/Embroidery (50) 01/11/2024 45273 750.00

1-5-58213-000  Buffaloe Graphics Uniform 1/4 Zip Sweatshirt Embroidery/Screenprinting 01/22/2024 45331 376.00

1-5-58213-000  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards MC Visa; Station Boots for Clelland 01/13/2024 0 220.98

1-5-58213-000  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards MC Visa; Response Boots for Nichols 01/13/2024 0 425.65

Page 4



Account No Vendor Description GL Date Check No Amount

1-5-60221-000  Cintas Corp December Janitorial Supplies/Laundry Service at CP 01/11/2024 45280 390.61

1-5-60221-000  Cintas Corp December Janitorial Supplies/Laundry Service at EP 01/11/2024 45280 535.42

1-5-60221-000  Cintas Corp December Janitorial Supplies/Laundry Service at FSC 01/11/2024 45280 308.26

1-5-60221-000  Cintas Corp December Janitorial Supplies/Laundry Service at WC 01/11/2024 45280 897.37

1-5-60221-000  Cintas Corp December Janitorial Supplies/Laundry Service at SNC 01/11/2024 45280 869.27

1-5-60221-000  Cintas Corp December Janitorial Supplies/Laundry Service at ADM 01/11/2024 45280 270.10

1-5-60221-000  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards JoP Visa; Janitorial Supplies 01/13/2024 0 14.50

1-5-60221-000  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards KR Visa; Janitorial Supplies 01/13/2024 0 68.00

1-5-60223-006  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards JoP Visa; Blade Crimper 01/13/2024 0 40.98

1-5-60223-006  Kelly's Laundry Detergent 01/11/2024 45294 482.43

1-5-60223-007  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards KR Visa; Logistic Tote Bags (10) 01/13/2024 0 21.99

1-5-60223-008  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards KR Visa; Restock Station Coffee (30) 01/13/2024 0 389.70

1-5-60223-016  Grange Co-op Box Fan 01/11/2024 45288 34.99

1-5-60223-016  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards MF Visa; Condiments for CC (to be Reimb) 01/13/2024 0 10.58

1-5-60223-016  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards JoP Visa; Mouse Traps 01/13/2024 0 27.95

1-5-60223-016  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards JoP Visa; Station Supplies for GH 01/13/2024 0 126.50

1-5-60230-000  Hays Oil Co. Fuel 01/11/2024 45290 799.21

1-5-60230-000  Hays Oil Co. Fill WC Fuel Tank (525 Gal Diesel) 01/11/2024 45290 1,531.00

1-5-60230-000  Hays Oil Co. Fuel 01/11/2024 45290 1,382.34

1-5-60230-000  Hays Oil Co. Fill EP Fuel Tank (125 Gal Diesel) 01/11/2024 45290 357.78

1-5-60230-000  Hays Oil Co. Fill SNC Fuel Tank (225 Gal Diesel) 01/11/2024 45290 661.16

1-5-60250-000  Batteries Plus Bulbs #208 Vehicle Battery 01/22/2024 45330 234.99

1-5-60250-000  MyFleetCenter.com Oil Service on SV22-04 01/11/2024 45303 83.38

1-5-60250-000  Les Schwab Warehouse Center New Tires (4)/Studs for SV22-01 01/22/2024 45334 1,931.44

1-5-60250-000  Miller Auto Care Steering Diagnosis on SV15-02 (Facilities Van) 01/22/2024 45336 99.00

1-5-60250-000  O'Reilly Automotive, Inc. Wiper Blades for SV03-01 01/11/2024 45306 43.59

1-5-60250-000  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards JoP Visa; Tires for SV17-02 01/13/2024 0 663.80

1-5-60250-000  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards JoP Visa; Batteries for SV11-01 01/13/2024 0 169.99

1-5-60250-000  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards WC Visa; Batteries (2) for SV15-01 01/13/2024 0 269.98

1-5-60250-000  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards JoP Visa; Tires for SV17-01 01/13/2024 0 543.80

1-5-60250-000  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards BC Visa; Handheld Pro Engine Code Reader 01/13/2024 0 2,105.13

1-5-60250-000  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards JoP Visa; Tire Install for SV11-02 01/13/2024 0 124.00

1-5-60251-110  Carl Cordes December Landscape Maint at WC 01/11/2024 45276 320.00

1-5-60251-110  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards JoP Visa; Electrical Parts for WC 01/13/2024 0 21.31

1-5-60251-111  Carl Cordes December Landscape Maint at CP 01/11/2024 45276 200.00

1-5-60251-111  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards JoP Visa; Exit Sign for CP 01/13/2024 0 37.47

1-5-60251-111  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards JoP Visa; Parts for Range Hood Project at CP 01/13/2024 0 58.70

1-5-60251-112  Siskiyou Pump Service, Inc. Pump Inspection at DB 01/11/2024 45321 149.35

1-5-60251-114  D2 Services Insulate Water Supply Line at GH 01/11/2024 45283 250.00

1-5-60251-114  Glacier Heating & Air HVAC Repair at GH 01/11/2024 45287 130.00

1-5-60251-114  Grover Electric and Plumbing Supply Plumbing Parts for Water Leak at GH 01/11/2024 45289 50.15

1-5-60251-114  Grover Electric and Plumbing Supply Plumbing Parts for Water Leak at GH 01/11/2024 45289 39.35

1-5-60251-114  Carl Cordes December Landscape Maint at GH 01/11/2024 45276 190.00

1-5-60251-114  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards JoP Visa; Water Delivery at GH 01/13/2024 0 120.00

Page 5



Account No Vendor Description GL Date Check No Amount

1-5-60251-114  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards JoP Visa; Water Supply at GH 01/13/2024 0 14.17

1-5-60251-115  Rogue Transfer & Recycling, LLC Dump Fee for AL 01/11/2024 45314 65.80

1-5-60251-116  American Industrial Door LLC Door Springs for EP 01/11/2024 45267 2,190.00

1-5-60251-116  Carl Cordes December Landscape Maint at EP 01/11/2024 45276 180.00

1-5-60251-116  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards JoP Visa; Parts for Toilet Rebuild at EP 01/13/2024 0 51.16

1-5-60251-118  Carl Cordes December Landscape Maint at SNC 01/11/2024 45276 260.00

1-5-60251-121  Don's Lock, LLC Re-Key 8425 Agate Warehouse 01/11/2024 45284 366.00

1-5-60251-121  Medical Eradication Services ADM Janitorial for December 01/11/2024 45299 1,120.00

1-5-60251-121  Carl Cordes December Landscape Maint at ADM 01/11/2024 45276 180.00

1-5-60251-123  Double D Electric 3-Way Switch for RCC Classroom Hallway 01/11/2024 45285 237.50

1-5-60251-123  Medical Eradication Services FSC Janitorial for December 01/11/2024 45299 280.00

1-5-60500-110  Avista Natural Gas (WC) 01/11/2024 45271 1,577.76

1-5-60500-110  Charter Communications Cable TV Service (WC) 01/11/2024 45279 118.88

1-5-60500-110  Hunter Communications February Internet Fiber Connection (WC) 01/11/2024 45291 148.49

1-5-60500-110  Medford Water Commission Water (WC) 01/11/2024 45298 309.28

1-5-60500-110  Pacific Power Electricity (WC) 01/11/2024 45307 961.98

1-5-60500-110  Rogue Disposal & Recycling, Inc. Garbage (WC) 01/11/2024 45313 328.08

1-5-60500-110  Rogue Valley Sewer Services Sewer (WC) 01/11/2024 45316 158.53

1-5-60500-111  Avista Natural Gas (CP) 01/11/2024 45271 588.88

1-5-60500-111  City of Central Point Water (CP) 01/11/2024 45281 220.72

1-5-60500-111  Charter Communications Digital Cable Receiver Rental (CP) 01/11/2024 45279 30.52

1-5-60500-111  Hunter Communications February Internet Fiber Connection (CP) 01/11/2024 45291 275.99

1-5-60500-111  Pacific Power Electricity (CP) 01/11/2024 45307 565.58

1-5-60500-111  Rogue Disposal & Recycling, Inc. Garbage (CP) 01/11/2024 45313 181.41

1-5-60500-111  Rogue Valley Sewer Services Sewer (CP) 01/11/2024 45316 35.20

1-5-60500-112  CenturyLink Telephone (DB) 01/11/2024 45278 110.73

1-5-60500-112  CenturyLink DSL Internet (DB) 01/11/2024 45278 9.99

1-5-60500-112  Pacific Power Electricity (DB) 01/11/2024 45307 100.60

1-5-60500-112  Pacific Power Electricity (DB Mobile 1) 01/11/2024 45307 39.36

1-5-60500-112  Pacific Power Electricity (DB Mobile 2) 01/11/2024 45307 121.90

1-5-60500-112  So Oregon Sanitation, Inc Garbage (DB) 01/11/2024 45322 31.78

1-5-60500-113  Pacific Power Electricity (SV) 01/11/2024 45307 168.04

1-5-60500-113  Pacific Power Electricity (SV Mobile 1) 01/11/2024 45307 29.06

1-5-60500-113  So Oregon Sanitation, Inc Garbage (SV) 01/11/2024 45322 69.49

1-5-60500-114  Avista Natural Gas (GH) 01/11/2024 45271 568.02

1-5-60500-114  Charter Communications Digital Cable Receiver Rental (GH) 01/11/2024 45279 30.51

1-5-60500-114  Charter Communications Internet Service (GH) 01/11/2024 45279 169.98

1-5-60500-114  Pacific Power Electricity (GH) 01/11/2024 45307 260.99

1-5-60500-114  So Oregon Sanitation, Inc Garbage (GH) 01/11/2024 45322 60.41

1-5-60500-114 Michael Wilson GH Station Water Well Power for 13 Months 01/11/2024 45327 1,950.00

1-5-60500-115  CenturyLink Telephone (AL) 01/11/2024 45278 91.98

1-5-60500-115  Pacific Power Electricity (AL Mobile 1) 01/11/2024 45307 151.93

1-5-60500-115  Pacific Power Electricity (AL) 01/11/2024 45307 193.96

1-5-60500-116  Avista Natural Gas (EP) 01/11/2024 45271 733.92

Page 6



Account No Vendor Description GL Date Check No Amount

1-5-60500-116  CenturyLink Telephone (EP) 01/11/2024 45278 417.47

1-5-60500-116  Charter Communications Cable TV Service (EP) 01/11/2024 45279 130.74

1-5-60500-116  City of Eagle Point Water/Sewer (EP) 01/11/2024 45282 98.00

1-5-60500-116  Hunter Communications February Internet Fiber Connection (EP) 01/11/2024 45291 275.99

1-5-60500-116  Pacific Power Electricity (EP) 01/11/2024 45307 558.59

1-5-60500-116  So Oregon Sanitation, Inc Garbage (EP) 01/11/2024 45322 123.89

1-5-60500-118  Avista Natural Gas (SNC) 01/11/2024 45271 783.26

1-5-60500-118  City of Central Point Water (SNC) 01/11/2024 45281 218.16

1-5-60500-118  Charter Communications Cable TV Service (SNC) 01/11/2024 45279 130.72

1-5-60500-118  Hunter Communications February Internet Fiber Connection (SNC) 01/11/2024 45291 275.99

1-5-60500-118  Pacific Power Electricity (SNC) 01/11/2024 45307 796.13

1-5-60500-118  Rogue Disposal & Recycling, Inc. Garbage (SNC) 01/11/2024 45313 198.70

1-5-60500-118  Rogue Valley Sewer Services Sewer (SNC) 01/11/2024 45316 26.78

1-5-60500-120  Avista Natural Gas (TC) 01/11/2024 45271 192.06

1-5-60500-120  Medford Water Commission Water (TC) 01/11/2024 45298 1,141.50

1-5-60500-120  Pacific Power Electricity (SIM) 01/11/2024 45307 34.33

1-5-60500-120  Rogue Valley Sewer Services Sewer (TC) 01/11/2024 45316 159.83

1-5-60500-121  CenturyLink Telephone (Alarm System & 911) 01/11/2024 45278 65.38

1-5-60500-121  CenturyLink Telephone (ADM) 01/11/2024 45278 1,086.04

1-5-60500-121  Charter Communications Cable TV Service (ADM) 01/11/2024 45279 107.31

1-5-60500-121  Hunter Communications February Internet Fiber Connection (ADM) 01/11/2024 45291 148.49

1-5-60500-121  Medford Water Commission Water (ADM) 01/11/2024 45298 101.40

1-5-60500-121  Pacific Power Electricity (ADM) 01/11/2024 45307 1,644.72

1-5-60500-121  Rogue Valley Sewer Services Sewer (8425 Agate Rd) 01/11/2024 45316 77.31

1-5-60500-123  Avista Natural Gas (FSC) 01/11/2024 45271 139.08

1-5-60500-123  Pacific Power Electricity (FSC) 01/11/2024 45307 139.24

1-5-60500-123  Rogue Valley Sewer Services Sewer (FSC) 01/11/2024 45316 58.34
           

      Sub Total Dept 5: $44,581.08

TECHNOLOGY

1-7-58212-000  Regence Blue Cross February Health Insurance Premium 01/18/2024 0 1,228.30

1-7-58212-000  Special Districts February Dental, Life, AD&D Insurances 01/11/2024 45323 162.20

1-7-60223-011  Batteries Plus Bulbs #208 Batteries (8) for UPS at Warehouse 01/22/2024 45330 201.20

1-7-60223-011  Batteries Plus Bulbs #208 Batteries (10) for UPS at WC 01/22/2024 45330 200.50

1-7-60223-011  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards PR Visa; Modem Adapters 01/13/2024 0 17.58

1-7-60223-011  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards PR Visa; Serial Cable 01/13/2024 0 35.55

1-7-60223-011  Wells Fargo Bank Visa Cards PR Visa; Presentation Pointers (2) 01/13/2024 0 26.86

1-7-60240-000  PDQ.com Annual PDQ Computer Status Inventory Subscription 01/11/2024 45308 675.00

1-7-60240-000  Project A Incorporated Alliance Website Hosting Quarterly Subscription (Qtr 3/2023) 01/11/2024 45311 150.00

1-7-60241-000  Kelley Create Co Mitel Upgrade Support 01/11/2024 45293 1,100.00

1-7-60241-000  Kelley Create Co Mitel Upgrade Support 01/11/2024 45293 1,100.00

1-7-60252-000  Ricoh USA, Inc Quarterly Copy Charges (CP) 01/11/2024 45312 4.32

1-7-60252-000  Ricoh USA, Inc Quarterly Copy Charges (EP) 01/11/2024 45312 18.54

Page 7



Account No Vendor Description GL Date Check No Amount

1-7-60252-000  Ricoh USA, Inc Quarterly Copy Charges (WC) 01/11/2024 45312 21.03

1-7-60252-000  Ricoh USA, Inc Quarterly Copy Charges (SNC) 01/11/2024 45312 11.71

1-7-60253-000  Silke Communications Solutions Programming of Mobile Radio for New BC Rig 01/11/2024 45320 549.20

1-7-60290-000  AT&T Mobility November Cellular and Data Charges 01/11/2024 45270 1,132.79

1-7-60290-000  Verizon Wireless December Cellular and Data Charges 01/11/2024 45326 1,575.12
           

      Sub Total Dept 7: $8,209.90

NON DEPARTMENTAL

1-9-80010-000  Chase Bank Series 2019 Scheduled Debt Principal Payment 01/02/2024 0 198,000.00

1-9-80011-000  Chase Bank Series 2019 Scheduled Debt Interest Payment 01/02/2024 0 26,271.30

      Sub Total Dept 9: $224,271.30

      Total General Fund: $496,961.11

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Total Capital Projects Fund: $0.00

      Total All Funds: $496,961.11

Page 8



JACKSON COUNTY 
FIRE DISTRICT 3 

 
   

 

    RESOLUTION NO. 24-02     

IN THE MATTER OF ADOPTING THE JACKSON COUNTY FIRE 
DISTRICT 3 ADDENDUM TO THE  

JACKSON COUNTY MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL  
NATURAL HAZARDS MITIGATION PLAN 

 

WHEREAS, Jackson County Fire District 3 recognizes the threat that natural hazards pose to 

people, property and infrastructure within our community; and 

 

WHEREAS, undertaking hazard mitigation actions will reduce the potential for harm to 

people, property, and infrastructure from future hazard occurrences; and 

 

WHEREAS, an adopted Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan (NHMP) is required as a condition 

of future funding for mitigation projects under multiple FEMA pre- and post-disaster mitigation 

grant programs; and 

 

WHEREAS, the District has fully participated in the FEMA prescribed mitigation planning 

process to prepare the Jackson County, Multi-Jurisdictional Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan, which 

has established a comprehensive, coordinated planning process to eliminate or minimize these 

vulnerabilities; and 

 

WHEREAS, the District has identified natural hazard risks and prioritized a number of 

proposed actions and programs needed to mitigate the vulnerabilities of the District to the 

impacts of future disasters within the Jackson County, Multi-Jurisdictional Natural Hazards 

Mitigation Plan; and  

 

WHEREAS, these proposed projects and programs have been incorporated into the Jackson 

County, Multi-Jurisdictional Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan that has been prepared and 

promulgated for consideration and implementation by the participating cities and special districts 

of Jackson County; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Oregon Office of Emergency Management and Federal Emergency 

Management Agency, Region X officials have reviewed the Jackson County, Multi-Jurisdictional 

Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan and pre-approved it (dated, January 9, 2024) contingent upon this 

official adoption of the participating governments and entities; 

 



 
   

 

WHEREAS, the NHMP is comprised of comprised of three volumes: Volume I 

– Basic Plan, Volume II – Appendices, and Volume III – Jurisdictional Addenda, 

collectively referred to herein as the NHMP; and 

 

WHEREAS, the NHMP is in an on-going cycle of development and revision to improve its 

effectiveness; and  

 

WHEREAS, Jackson County Fire District 3 adopts the NHMP and directs the Fire Chief to 

develop, approve, and implement the mitigation strategies and any administrative changes to the 

NHMP. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that Jackson County Fire District 3 adopts the Jackson 

County Multi-Jurisdictional Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan as an official plan; and 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Jackson County Fire District 3 will submit this Adoption 

Resolution to the Oregon Office of Emergency Management and Federal Emergency Management 

Agency, Region X officials to enable final approval of the Jackson County Multi-Jurisdictional 

Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Date adopted:  February 15, 2024 

 

 

 

 

              

BOARD OF DIRECTORS     BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 



 

 

Prepared for 
Fire District #3 

420 6th Avenue 
Fire District #3, OR 97525 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by 
The University of Oregon 

Institute for Policy Research & Engagement 
School of Planning, Public Policy, and Management 

Effective: February XX, 2024-February XX, 2029 

Jackson County  
Fire District #3 Addendum 

to the Jackson County NHMP 

Photos courtesy of Oregon State Archives 

 

    



 

Table of Contents 
INTRODUCTION .............................................................................................................................................................. 1 

Purpose ................................................................................................................................................................. 1 
NHMP Process, Participation and Adoption .......................................................................................................... 1 

NHMP IMPLEMENTATION AND MAINTENANCE .................................................................................................................... 2 
Implementation through Existing Programs ......................................................................................................... 3 
Capability Assessment .......................................................................................................................................... 3 

Existing Authorities ............................................................................................................................................................ 3 
Policies and Programs ....................................................................................................................................................... 4 
Personnel .......................................................................................................................................................................... 5 
Capital Projects .................................................................................................................................................................. 6 
Capital Resources .............................................................................................................................................................. 6 
Findings ............................................................................................................................................................................. 6 

MITIGATION STRATEGY ................................................................................................................................................... 7 
Mitigation Successes ............................................................................................................................................ 7 
Action Items .......................................................................................................................................................... 7 

RISK ASSESSMENT ........................................................................................................................................................ 12 
Hazard Analysis .................................................................................................................................................. 13 
Community Characteristics ................................................................................................................................. 13 
Community Assets .............................................................................................................................................. 15 
Hazard Characteristics ........................................................................................................................................ 18 

Air Quality ....................................................................................................................................................................... 18 
Drought ........................................................................................................................................................................... 18 
Earthquake (Cascadia) ..................................................................................................................................................... 19 
Earthquake (Crustal) ........................................................................................................................................................ 21 
Emerging Infectious Disease ............................................................................................................................................ 23 
Flood ............................................................................................................................................................................... 24 
Landslide ......................................................................................................................................................................... 26 
Severe Weather ............................................................................................................................................................... 28 
Windstorm ...................................................................................................................................................................... 29 
Winter Storm (Snow/Ice) ................................................................................................................................................. 30 
Volcanic Event ................................................................................................................................................................. 31 
Wildfire............................................................................................................................................................................ 31 

ATTACHMENT A: PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT SUMMARY .............................................................................................. 35 

Website Posting .................................................................................................................................................. 36 
Fire District #3 Steering Committee .................................................................................................................... 37 

 

  



 

List of Tables 
TABLE FD3-1 ACTION ITEMS .................................................................................................................................................. 8 
TABLE FD3-2 HAZARD ANALYSIS MATRIX ............................................................................................................................... 13 
TABLE FD3-3 FACILITIES ...................................................................................................................................................... 17 
TABLE FD3-4 RAPID VISUAL SURVEY SCORES .......................................................................................................................... 21 

 

List of Figures 
FIGURE FD3-1 UNDERSTANDING RISK ................................................................................................................................... 12 
FIGURE FD3-2 NORMAL PRECIPITATION: ANNUAL (1991-2020) ............................................................................................. 14 
FIGURE FD3-3 LAND COVER................................................................................................................................................. 15 
FIGURE FD3-4 FACILITIES AND COMMUNITY LIFELINES ............................................................................................................. 16 
FIGURE FD3-5 CASCADIA SUBDUCTION ZONE PERCEIEVED SHAKING .......................................................................................... 20 
FIGURE FD3-6 LIQUEFACTION SUSCEPTIBILITY ........................................................................................................................ 22 
FIGURE FD3-7 FEMA FLOOD ZONES .................................................................................................................................... 25 
FIGURE FD3-8 LANDSLIDE SUSCEPTIBILITY EXPOSURE .............................................................................................................. 28 
FIGURE FD3-9 BURN PROBABILITY ........................................................................................................................................ 32 
FIGURE FD3-10 FIRE MANAGEMENT ZONES .......................................................................................................................... 34 



 

|       Jackson County NHMP 2024: Fire District #3 Addendum   Page FD3 | 1 

Introduction 
Purpose 
This is the first iteration of the Fire District #3 addendum to the Jackson County Multi-
Jurisdictional Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan (MNHMP, NHMP). This addendum supplements 
information contained in Volume I (Basic Plan), which serves as the NHMP foundation and 
Volume II (Appendices), which provide additional information. This addendum meets the 
following requirements:  

• Multi-Jurisdictional Plan Adoption §201.6(c)(5),  
• Multi-Jurisdictional Participation §201.6(a)(3),  
• Multi-Jurisdictional Mitigation Strategy §201.6(c)(3)(iv) and  
• Multi-Jurisdictional Risk Assessment §201.6(c)(2)(iii). 

Fire District #3 adopted their addendum to the Jackson County Multi-jurisdictional NHMP on 
[date], 2024. FEMA Region X approved the Jackson County NHMP on [date], 2024 and Fire 
District #3’s addendum on [date], 2024. With approval of this NHMP, Fire District #3 is now 
eligible for non-disaster and disaster mitigation project grants through [date-1], 2029. 

NHMP Process, Participation and Adoption 
This section of the NHMP addendum addresses 44 CFR 201.6(c)(5), Plan Adoption and 44 CFR 
201.6(a)(3), Participation.  

In addition to establishing a comprehensive District level mitigation strategy, the Disaster 
Mitigation Act of 2000 (DMA2K), and the regulations contained in Title 44 CFR Part 201, require 
that jurisdictions maintain an approved NHMP to receive federal funds for mitigation projects. 
Local adoption, and federal approval of this NHMP ensures that Fire District #3 will gain 
eligiblility for non-disaster and disaster mitigation project grants.  

The Oregon Partnership for Disaster Resilience (OPDR) at the University of Oregon’s Institute for 
Policy Research and Engagement (IPRE) partnered with the Oregon Department of Emergency 
Management (OEM), Jackson County, and Fire District #3 to develop this NHMP. This project is 
funded through the Federal Emergency Management Agency’s (FEMA) Hazard Mitigation Grant 
Program. Members of the Fire District #3 NHMP steering committee also participated in the 
County NHMP update process (Volume II, Appendix B). 

By creating a NHMP, locally adopting it, and having it approved by FEMA, Fire District #3 will gain 
eligibility for FEMA Hazard Mitigation Assistance grant program funds.  

The Jackson County NHMP and Fire District #3 addendum are the result of a collaborative effort 
between residents, public agencies, non-profit organizations, the private sector, and regional 
organizations. A project steering committee guided the process of developing the NHMP.  



 

|       Jackson County NHMP 2024: Fire District #3 Addendum   Page FD3 | 2 

Convener and Committee 
The Fire Chief served as the designated convener of the NHMP development and will take the 
lead in implementing, maintaining, and updating the addendum to the Jackson County NHMP in 
collaboration with the designated convener of the Jackson County NHMP (Emergency Manager).  

Representatives from the Fire District #3 steering committee met formally and informally, to 
discuss development of their addendum (Volume II, Appendix B). The steering committee 
reviewed and developed Fire District #3’s addendum, with particular focus on the NHMP’s risk 
assessment (hazards, community vulnerabilities, and capabilities) and mitigation strategy (action 
items). 

The addendum reflects decisions made at the designated meetings and during subsequent work 
and communication with Jackson County Emergency Management and the OPDR.  

The Fire District #3 Steering Committee was comprised of the following representatives: 

• Convener, Mike Hussey. Fire Chief 
• John Patterson, Division Chief-Risk Reduction 

The steering committee was closely involved throughout the development of the NHMP and 
served as the local oversight body for the NHMP’s development.  

NHMP Implementation and Maintenance 
The Board of Directors will be responsible for adopting the Fire District #3 addendum to the 
Jackson County NHMP. This addendum designates a Steering Committee and a convener to 
oversee the development and implementation of action items. Because the district addendum is 
part of the County’s multi-jurisdictional NHMP, the district will look for opportunities to partner 
with the County. Fire District #3’s steering committee will convene after adoption of the NHMP 
addendum on an annual schedule. The County is meeting on a semi-annual basis and will provide 
opportunities for the cities and special districts to report on NHMP implementation and 
maintenance during their meetings. The convener will be responsible for assembling the steering 
committee.  

The steering committee will be responsible for: 

• Reviewing existing action items to determine suitability of funding;  
• Reviewing existing and new risk assessment data to identify issues that may not have 

been identified at NHMP creation;  
• Educating and training new steering committee members on the NHMP and mitigation 

actions in general; 
• Assisting in the development of funding proposals for priority action items;  
• Discussing methods for continued public involvement;  
• Evaluating effectiveness of the NHMP at achieving its purpose and goals (use Table 4-1, 

Volume I, Section 4, as one tool to help measure effectiveness); and 



 

|       Jackson County NHMP 2024: Fire District #3 Addendum   Page FD3 | 3 

• Documenting successes and lessons learned during the year. 

The convener will also remain active in the County’s implementation and maintenance process 
(Volume I, Section 4). 

The steering committee will be responsible for activities outlined in Volume I, Section 4. 

Fire District #3 will utilize the same action item prioritization process as the County (Volume I, 
Section 4 and Volume II, Appendix D). 

Implementation through Existing Programs  
Many of the Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan’s recommendations are consistent with the goals 
and objectives of Fire District #3’s existing plans and policies. Where possible, Fire District #3 will 
implement the NHMP’s recommended actions through existing plans and policies. Plans and 
policies already in existence have support from residents, businesses, and policy makers. Many 
land-use, comprehensive, and strategic plans get updated regularly, allowing them to adapt to 
changing conditions and needs. Implementing the NHMP’s action items through such plans and 
policies increases their likelihood of being supported and implemented.  

Fire District #3 currently has the following plans and programs that relate to natural hazard 
mitigation. For a complete list visit Fire District #3’s website. 

• Strategic Plan (2021-2023) update expected in December 2023 
• Rogue Valley Integrated Community Wildfire Protection Plan (RVIFP, updated 2019)  

During the development of this NHMP District plans, including the strategic and fire plan, were 
reviewed to identify possible natural hazard mitigation strategies (action items).  

Capability Assessment 
The Capability Assessment identifies and describes the ability of Jackson County Fire District #3 
to implement the mitigation strategy and associated action items. Capabilities can be evaluated 
through an examination of broad categories, including: existing authorities, policies, programs, 
funding, and resources.  

Existing Authorities 
Hazard mitigation can be executed at a local scale through three (3) methods: integrating hazard 
mitigation actions into other local planning documents (i.e., plan integration), adopting building 
and/or fire codes that account for best practices in structural hardening and fire resistance, and 
codifying land use regulations and zoning designations that prescribe mitigation into 
development requirements. The extent to which a municipality, district, or multi-jurisdictional 
effort leverages these approaches is an indicator of that community’s capabilities. 

  

https://www.jcfd3.com/
https://www.jcfd3.com/sites/g/files/vyhlif5396/f/uploads/strategic_plan_2021-2023_final.pdf
https://jacksoncountyor.org/emergency/DesktopModules/Bring2mind/DMX/API/Entries/Download?EntryId=51476&Command=Core_Download&language=en-US&PortalId=13&TabId=1568


 

|       Jackson County NHMP 2024: Fire District #3 Addendum   Page FD3 | 4 

2021-2023 Strategic Plan 
The primary planning document for District 3 is their Strategic Plan. This plan focuses on 
community engagement and risk reduction, and on workforce development, enhancing 
technology, and utilizing data analytics to be resource smart.1 

2017 Standards of Cover 
These adopted written policies and procedures determine the distribution, concentration, and 
reliability of fixed and mobile response forces for fire, emergency medical services, hazardous 
materials, and other technical responses. Key components include agency goals, services 
provided, community risk assessment (including hazard analysis), and performance objectives. It 
integrates the hazard analysis from the Jackson County Emergency Operations Plan. 

Structural and Fire Codes 
The Oregon Legislature recently adopted updated building codes for both residential (2021 
adoption) and commercial structures (2022) since the last update of this Plan. These building 
codes are based on the 2021 version of the International Building Code, International Fire Code, 
and International Existing Building Code. Jackson County has adopted the 2021 Oregon 
Residential Structural Code. The Jackson County Fire District #3 Building Department administers 
the 2020 edition of the Oregon Fire Code.  

Together, they ensure that both new residential and commercial structures are built according 
to the latest seismic and wind hardening standards in addition to requiring fire resistant building 
materials for those structures constructed in proximity or within the WUI.  

Construction in the unincorporated rural areas of Jackson County is limited by lack of municipal 
water supplies and Jackson County zoning restrictions. The Jackson County Land Development 
Ordinance contains special provisions for development in identified wildfire hazard areas. All 
development must comply with the provisions of city and County zoning ordinances, building 
codes, and fire codes. The District participates in the development review and approval process 
with all three cities and the county. 

Policies and Programs  
This Plan directs Jackson County Fire District #3 and Jackson County to explore integration into 
other planning documents and processes. Jackson County Fire District #3 has made significant 
progress in integrating the NHMP into its portfolio of planning processes and programs over the 
last five years. 

Risk Reduction Services 
Risk Reduction is a key component of District 3’s mission. Their Risk Reduction Division is staffed 
with a Fire Marshal, three Deputy Fire Marshals, and a Community Risk Reduction Captain. This 
Division inspects commercial occupancies, conducts plan reviews for commercial construction, 
investigates all fires, performs home assessments, provides public education, and provides 
hazardous fuels mitigations services. In recent years, they have installed smoke detectors, 

 
1 2021-2023 Jackson County Fire District #3 Strategic Plan, Preface. strategic_plan_2021-2023_final.pdf (jcfd3.com) 

https://www.jcfd3.com/sites/g/files/vyhlif5396/f/uploads/strategic_plan_2021-2023_final.pdf


 

|       Jackson County NHMP 2024: Fire District #3 Addendum   Page FD3 | 5 

performed wildfire home inspections, cleared debris with chippers and trailers, and managed 
burn piles throughout the district to reduce the risk of wildfire and increase home safety.  

Administration 
The Jackson County Fire District #3 Board of Directors has the responsibility of developing and 
adopting the annual department budget. Integrating hazard mitigation goals and projects into 
the annual budget is key to implementing the plan. The Board tries to broadly address resilience 
needs while it determines departmental priorities and looks for multiple-impact projects 
wherever possible. They also work with staff to apply for federal and state grant funding to 
pursue larger projects that are outside of general funding capacity. 

Community Wildfire Protection Plan 
The Jackson County Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) will be incorporated into this 
Plan as a functioning annex.  

Firewise 
In the last five years, District 3 has recognized and provided support for five new Firewise 
communities, including: 

• The Meadows mobile park 555 Freeman Rd in Central Point 
• Nestled in The Hills mobile park 8495 Old Stage Rd.   
• Oak Hills mobile park 410 Stevens Rd Eagle Point  
• “Long Mountain” community west of Eagle Point. 
• John Day Estates, Gold Hill 

Personnel 
Fire District 3 provides fire suppression, emergency medical and rescue services, prevention, and 
risk reduction as well as community care to more than 57,000 people living in the communities 
of Central Point, White City, Eagle Point, Gold Hill, Sams Valley, Dodge Bridge, and Agate Lake. 
The District’s 73 full-time employees and 18 volunteers work from four career stations, four 
volunteer stations, and an Administration office to provide coverage to the 171 square miles that 
encompass the District.  

Click here for the existing organization chart. The following Jackson County Fire District #3 
personnel have assignments related to natural hazard mitigation planning and implementation: 

Emergency Management:  Deputy Chief 

Public Information Officer:  Community Engagement Coordinator 

Grant writing (for Public Works or emergency management):  Individual Divisions 

Capital improvement planning:  Fire Chief 

Capital improvement execution:  Chief Finance Officer 

https://www.jcfd3.com/sites/g/files/vyhlif5396/f/uploads/fd3_org_chart_horizontal.pdf


 

|       Jackson County NHMP 2024: Fire District #3 Addendum   Page FD3 | 6 

These personnel integrate hazard mitigation and resilience planning into their greater work 
programs to the best of their abilities. However, there is limited capacity to expand upon their 
capabilities or work loads.  

Capital Projects 
Jackson County Fire District #3 has implemented recommendations from the last NHMP into its 
capital improvement projects over the last 5 years, including: 

• New Scenic Fire Station (2020) 
• Seismic rehabilitation projects on five (5) fire stations (2018), two (2) in 2017 
• RCC/FD3 Fire Science Educational Center (opened 2018) 

Upcoming: Capital Improvement Plan (2024-2025) 

Capital Resources 
Jackson County Fire District #3 maintains eight (8) stations; four are staffed full-time with career 
members, four are staffed with dedicated volunteers. They also have an administration facility 
and training center. Diesel fuel storage is located at the White City Station, Eagle Point Station, 
Sams Valley Station, and Scenic Station.  

Findings 
Several important findings from this capability assessment informed the design of the Plan’s 
mitigation strategy and aided in prioritizing action items.  

Staffing Limitations and Capacity 
Jackson County Fire District #3 staff are assigned hazard mitigation responsibilities as a part of 
their larger job responsibilities. Limited capacity reduces the breadth of the programming the 
district can undertake in any year. The District relies upon its relationships with the County and 
other cities within its region to expand its operations. 

Reliance upon outside funding streams and local match requirements 
Jackson County Fire District #3 operates on a limited budget. Grants and limited annual revenue 
are directed to sustain the marketing of resilience programs. But there are few opportunities for 
using local financial resources to implement more extensive hazard mitigation work. They lean 
heavily upon state and federal grant funds as the primary means for securing mitigation funding.  

Leveraging Partnerships with Public and Nonprofit Entities 
Regional planning displayed in Community Wildfire Protection Planning process demonstrates 
the District’s ability to effectively share information and identified priority needs.  

 

  



 

|       Jackson County NHMP 2024: Fire District #3 Addendum   Page FD3 | 7 

Mitigation Strategy 
This section of the NHMP addendum addresses 44 CFR 201.6(c)(3(iv), Mitigation Strategy.  

Fire District #3’s mitigation strategy (action items) was developed during the 2024 NHMP 
planning process. The steering committee assessed risk, identified potential issues, and 
developed a mitigation strategy (action items). Fire District #3 developed actions specific to their 
community after first reviewing a list of recommended actions developed by the County or 
recommended by OPDR.  

Mitigation Successes 
Fire District #3 has several examples of hazard mitigation including the following projects funded 
through FEMA Hazard Mitigation Assistance and the Oregon Infrastructure Finance Authority’s 
Seismic Rehabilitation Grant Program2. 

FEMA Funded Mitigation Successes 
• None to date 

Seismic Rehabilitation Grant Program Mitigation Successes 
• 2017: Agate Lake Fire Station Seismic Rehab, Jackson County Fire District #3 ($54,263) 
• 2017: Central Point Fire Station Seismic Rehab, Jackson County Fire District #3 ($235,657) 
• 2017: Dodge Bridge Fire Station Seismic Rehab, Jackson County Fire District #3 

($103,591) 
• 2017: Eagle Point Fire Station Seismic Rehab, Jackson County Fire District #3 ($39,790) 
• 2017: Sams Valley Fire Station Seismic Rehab, Jackson County Fire District #3 ($109,876) 

Other Mitigation Successes 
• 2009: Seismic upgrades wo the White City Fire Station 

Action Items  
Table FD3-1 documents the title of each action along with, the lead organization, partners, 
timeline, cost, and potential funding resources. 

 

 
2 The Seismic Rehabilitation Grant Program (SRGP) is a state of Oregon competitive grant program that provides funding for the 
seismic rehabilitation of critical public buildings, particularly public schools, and emergency services facilities. 

https://www.fema.gov/fact-sheet/summary-fema-hazard-mitigation-assistance-hma-programs
https://www.oregon.gov/biz/programs/srgp/pages/default.aspx


 

|       Jackson County NHMP 2024: Fire District #3 Addendum    Page FD3 | 8 

Table FD3-1 Action Items 

Action  
Item # 

Mitigation Actions 
Potential 
Funding 

Resources 
Lead Partners Timeline Cost 

Multi-Hazard Mitigation Strategies 

1.1 
Deploy ruggedized and reliable communication tools, 
including portable radios and tablets, to emergency 
responders. 

District Funding 
Resources, 
FEMA HMA 

District 
Administration 

Jackson County 
(JaCo) Emergency 
Management, 
Partner Cities, 
OEM 

M H 

1.2 Support development of redundancy in 911 and civilian 
communication networks. 

District Funding 
Resources, 
FEMA HMA 

District 
Administration 

JaCo Emergency 
Management, 
Partner Cities 

O L 

1.3 
Develop sustainability of emergency response service 
provision in rural service areas by hardening critical roadways 
against hazards. 

District Funding 
Resources, 
FEMA HMA, 
ODOT 

District 
Administration 

JaCo Emergency 
Management, 
Roads; Partner 
Cities, ODOT 

O H 

1.4 
Continue to contribute to County hazard preparedness 
activities. 

District Funding 
Resources, 
FEMA HMA 

District 
Administration 

JaCo Emergency 
Management, 
Partner Cities 

O L 

1.5 
Revise Continuity of Operations Plan (COOP) in support of 
District and partner agencies. 

District Funding 
Resources, 
FEMA HMA 

District 
Administration 

JaCo Emergency 
Management, 
Partner Cities, 
OEM, FEMA 

S M 

1.6 
Collaborate with City and County efforts in addressing NHMP 
priorities. 

District Funding 
Resources, 
FEMA HMA 

District 
Administration 

JaCo Emergency 
Management, 
Partner Cities 

O L 

1.7 Develop a centralized location for integration of video and 
incident analytics in support of incident management. 

District Funding 
Resources, 
FEMA HMA 

District 
Administration 

JaCo Emergency 
Management, 
Partner Cities, 
RVCOG 

S L 

1.8 
Work with regional partners to identify current capabilities 
and research options to establish a disaster registry and to 
secure an early warning system (EWS). 

District Funding 
Resources, 
FEMA HMA 

District 
Administration 

JaCo Emergency 
Management, 
Partner Cities, 
RVCOG 

M L 



 

|       Jackson County NHMP 2024: Fire District #3 Addendum    Page FD3 | 9 

Action  
Item # 

Mitigation Actions 
Potential 
Funding 

Resources 
Lead Partners Timeline Cost 

1.9 
Procure watercraft and necessary tools to integrate 
watercraft response capabilities into District services. 

District Funding 
Resources 

District 
Administration 

JaCo Emergency 
Management, 
Partner Cities 

M H 

1.10 
Conduct an analysis to determine inequitable barriers and/or 
effective incentives to advance resiliency of all hazard classes 
upon vulnerable populations.  

District Funding 
Resources 

District 
Administration 

JaCo Emergency 
Management, 
Partner Cities 

S L-H 

1.11 
Conduct ICS training and simulations for stakeholders and 
leadership of service area. 

District Funding 
Resources 

District 
Administration 

JaCo Emergency 
Management, 
Partner Cities, 
FEMA 

O L 

1.12 
Conduct Standards of Cover and deployment analysis for 
disaster response.   

District Funding 
Resources 

District 
Administration 

JaCo Emergency 
Management, 
Partner Cities 

O L 

1.13 Support Local Emergency Planning Committee (LEPC) by 
continuing to serve the committee in an advisory capacity. 

District Funding 
Resources, 
Jackson County 

District 
Administration 

JaCo Emergency 
Management, 
LEPC 

O L 

Air Quality Mitigation Strategies 

2.0 
The steering committee, using available local resources, will study this hazard further during the implementation and maintenance phase of this 
NHMP, seeking to identify cost effective actions that might be implemented to reduce community vulnerability.  

Drought Mitigation Strategies 

3.0 
The steering committee, using available local resources, will study this hazard further during the implementation and maintenance phase of this 
NHMP, seeking to identify cost effective actions that might be implemented to reduce community vulnerability.  

Earthquake Mitigation Strategies 

4.0 
The steering committee, using available local resources, will study this hazard further during the implementation and maintenance phase of this 
NHMP, seeking to identify cost effective actions that might be implemented to reduce community vulnerability.  

Emerging Infectious Disease Mitigation Strategies 

5.0 
Research and obtain personal protective equipment (PPE) 
reserves for emerging infectious disease. 

District Funding 
Resources, 
FEMA, OHA 

District 
Administration 

JaCo Emergency 
Management 

S M 



 

|       Jackson County NHMP 2024: Fire District #3 Addendum    Page FD3 | 10 

Action  
Item # 

Mitigation Actions 
Potential 
Funding 

Resources 
Lead Partners Timeline Cost 

Flood Mitigation Strategies 

6.0 
The steering committee, using available local resources, will study this hazard further during the implementation and maintenance phase of this 
NHMP, seeking to identify cost effective actions that might be implemented to reduce community vulnerability.  

Landslide Mitigation Strategies 

7.0 
The steering committee, using available local resources, will study this hazard further during the implementation and maintenance phase of this 
NHMP, seeking to identify cost effective actions that might be implemented to reduce community vulnerability.  

Severe Weather (Extreme Heat, Windstorm, Winter Storm) Mitigation Strategies 

8.0 
The steering committee, using available local resources, will study this hazard further during the implementation and maintenance phase of this 
NHMP, seeking to identify cost effective actions that might be implemented to reduce community vulnerability.  

Volcanic Event Mitigation Strategies 

9.0 
The steering committee, using available local resources, will study this hazard further during the implementation and maintenance phase of this 
NHMP, seeking to identify cost effective actions that might be implemented to reduce community vulnerability.  

Wildfire Mitigation Strategies 

10.1 
Sustain and expand the district's Fire Adapted Communities 
program to coordinate public education. 

District Funding 
Resources, 
FEMA HMA, 
CWDG 

District 
Administration 

JaCo Emergency 
Management, 
Media 

S L 

10.2 Investigate incentives for property owners to adhere to Fire 
Adapted Communities practices. 

District Funding 
Resources, 
CWDG 

District 
Administration 

JaCo Emergency 
Management, 
Partner Cities, 
RVCOG 

S L 

10.3 

Sustain and expand a fuel reduction program to address fuel 
loads at Agate Lake, Dodge Bridge, Eagle Point, and Old Stage 
Road and work with partner organizations (e.g., the Oregon 
Department of Forestry, the Bureau of Land Management, 
and Jackson County Parks) to reduce wildfire fuels. 

District Funding 
Resources, 
FEMA HMA, 
CWDG, USFS 

District 
Administration 

JaCo Emergency 
Management, 
Parks; ODF, BLM 

O H 

10.4 
Reduce hazards along key evacuation routes and coordinate 
Zone Haven evacuation route planning to ensure evacuation 
routes are complimentary. 

District Funding 
Resources, 
FEMA HMA, 
CWDG, ODOT 

District 
Administration 

JaCo Emergency 
Management, 
ODOT 

O M-H 



 

|       Jackson County NHMP 2024: Fire District #3 Addendum    Page FD3 | 11 

Action  
Item # 

Mitigation Actions 
Potential 
Funding 

Resources 
Lead Partners Timeline Cost 

10.5 
Implement the Rogue Valley Integrated Community Wildfire 
Protection Plan. 

District Funding 
Resources, 
FEMA HMA, 
CWDG, ODF 

District 
Administration 

JaCo Emergency 
Management, 
Partner Cities 

L L-H 

10.6 
Develop alternatives to non-prescription open burning of 
hazardous vegetation. 

District Funding 
Resources, 
FEMA HMA, 
CWDG, ODF 

District 
Administration 

JaCo Emergency 
Management, 
USFS, BLM, ODF 

S L 

10.7 Develop Temporary Refuge Areas in identified wildfire-prone 
areas where evacuation routes are limited. 

District Funding 
Resources, 
FEMA HMA, 
CWDG, ODF 

District 
Administration 

JaCo Emergency 
Management, 
Roads; USFS, 
BLM, ODF, ODOT 

M H 

Source: Fire District #3 NHMP Steering Committee, 2023 
Cost: L – Low (less than $50,000), M - Medium ($50,000-$100,000), H - High (more than $100,000) 
Timing: O-Ongoing (continuous), S-Short (1-2 years), M-Medium (3-5 years), L-Long (5 or more years) 
Priority Actions: Identified with bold text and orange highlight  



 

|       Jackson County NHMP 2024: Fire District #3 Addendum   Page MW | 12 

Risk Assessment 
This section of the NHMP addendum addresses 44 CFR 201.6(b)(2) - Risk Assessment. In 
addition, this chapter can serve as the factual basis for addressing Oregon Statewide 
Planning Goal 7 – Areas Subject to Natural Hazards.  

Assessing natural hazard risk has three phases:  

• Phase 1: Identify hazards that can impact the jurisdiction. This includes an evaluation 
of potential hazard impacts – type, location, extent, etc.  

• Phase 2: Identify important community assets and system vulnerabilities. Example 
vulnerabilities include people, businesses, homes, roads, historic places and drinking 
water sources.  

• Phase 3: Evaluate the extent to which the identified hazards overlap with or have an 
impact on, the important assets identified by the community. 

The local level rationale for the identified mitigation strategies (action items) is presented 
herein and within Volume I, Sections 2 and 3. The risk assessment process is graphically 
depicted in Figure FD3-1. Ultimately, the goal of hazard mitigation is to reduce the area of 
risk, where hazards overlap vulnerable systems. 

Figure FD3-1 Understanding Risk 

 



 

|       Jackson County NHMP 2024: Fire District #3 Addendum   Page MW | 13 

Hazard Analysis 
The Fire District #3 steering committee developed their hazard vulnerability assessment 
(HVA), using the County’s HVA (Volume II, Appendix C) as a reference. Changes from the 
County’s HVA were made where appropriate to reflect distinctions in vulnerability and risk 
from natural hazards unique to Fire District #3, which are discussed throughout this 
addendum.  

Table FD3-2 shows the HVA matrix for Fire District #3 listing each hazard listed in order of 
rank from high to low. For local governments, conducting the hazard analysis is a useful step 
in planning for hazard mitigation, response, and recovery. The method provides the 
jurisdiction with a sense of hazard priorities but does not predict the occurrence of a 
particular hazard.  

Three chronic hazards (wildfire, emerging infectious disease, and winter storm) and a 
catastrophic hazard (Cascadia Subduction Zone earthquake) rank as the top hazard threats to 
Fire District #3 (Top Tier). Extreme heat event, air quality, flood, and windstorm comprise the 
next highest ranked hazards (Middle Tier), while drought, landslide, crustal earthquake, and 
volcanic event hazards comprise the lowest ranked hazards (Bottom Tier).  

Table FD3-2 Hazard Analysis Matrix 

Source: Fire District #3 NHMP Steering Committee, 2023. 

Community Characteristics 
Fire District #3 directly services more than 57,000 people within their district, most living 
within Central Point, Eagle Point, Gold Hill, and unincorporated White City (Figure FD3-4). 
Residential development within cities is increasing with development in rural and forested 
parts of the district occurring at a slower pace.  

Hazard History Vulnerability
Maximum

Threat Probability
Total Threat 

Score
Hazard 

Rank
Hazard 

Tiers
Wildfire 20 40 100 56 216 #1
Emerging Infectious Disease 16 40 100 49 205 #2
Earthquake - Cascadia 2 50 100 49 201 #3
Winter Storm 20 50 60 70 200 #4
Extreme Heat Event 20 25 70 70 185 #5
Air Quality 18 40 60 63 181 #6
Flood 20 30 50 70 170 #7
Windstorm 20 20 50 70 160 #8
Drought 16 20 50 63 149 #9
Landslide 4 20 30 49 103 #10
Earthquake - Crustal 2 25 50 21 98 #11
Volcanic Event 2 5 50 7 64 #12

Top Tier

Middle 
Tier

Bottom 
Tier



 

|       Jackson County NHMP 2024: Fire District #3 Addendum   Page MW | 14 

About 98% of the building inventory is residential and related outbuildings (65% are within 
the Central Point and White City Fire Management Zones).3 The district has adopted NFPA 
1730 definitions for building classifications and frequency schedule as their model and goal. 
All high hazard/risk occupancies are inspected annually (about 226), moderate hazard/risk 
occupancies are inspected every two years (about 300), and low hazard risk every three 
years. 

Fire District #3’s territory experiences a relatively mild climate with four distinct seasons that 
comes from its position on the west coast of North America and within the Cascade Range 
mountains. The average daily high temperature in the area is between 45- and 55-degrees 
Fahrenheit (F) in the winter and between 80- and 95-degrees Fahrenheit (F) in the summer. 
The Rogue Valley has the lowest precipitation among Oregon’s western interior valleys and 
the fire district ranges from about 21 to 29 inches (Figure FD3-2). June through September 
are the driest months. 

Figure FD3-2 Normal Precipitation: Annual (1991-2020)  

Source: OPDR, data PRISM Climate Group 

 
3 Jackson County Fire District #3. Standards of Cover (2017). 

https://prism.oregonstate.edu/
https://www.jcfd3.com/sites/g/files/vyhlif5396/f/uploads/2017_standards_of_cover.pdf


 

|       Jackson County NHMP 2024: Fire District #3 Addendum   Page MW | 15 

The district is dominated by agricultural land including pasture/hay and cultivated crops with 
forest land on the edges of the district and at higher elevations (Figure FD3-3). There are 
three incorporated cites in the district (Central Point, Eagle Point, and Gold Hill) and the 
unincorporated community of White City.  

Figure FD3-3 Land Cover  

Source: OPDR, data from National Land Cover Database (2021) 

For more information on the characteristics of each partner jurisdiction (Jackson County, 
Central Point, Eagle Point, and Gold Hill) please review Volume II, Appendix C and the 
applicable city addenda in Volume III. 

Community Assets 
This section outlines the resources, facilities (including fire stations), and infrastructure that, 
if damaged, could significantly impact the public safety, economic conditions, and 
environmental integrity of the district. Fire District #3 facilities and community lifelines are 
shown in Figure FD3-4 and Table FD3-3. In addition, the fire district has several underground 
and above ground water storage tanks. There are numerous bridge crossings within the 
district including Dodge Bridge, Two Bell Bridge, and Access Bridge (2nd Avenue) that half of 

https://www.mrlc.gov/data?f%5B0%5D=category%3ALand%20Cover&f%5B1%5D=category%3AUrban%20Imperviousness&f%5B2%5D=year%3A2021


 

|       Jackson County NHMP 2024: Fire District #3 Addendum   Page MW | 16 

the population in the district rely upon. Some of the smaller bridges in the district have load 
limits that prevent usage by fire apparatus (see Standards of Cover (2017) for more 
information on these bridges). 

Community Lifelines are fundamental services that enable all other aspects of society to 
function. FEMA developed the Community Lifelines construct for objective-based response 
to prioritize the rapid stabilization of these facilities after a disaster. Mitigating these facilities 
will increase the community’s resilience. 

Figure FD3-4 Facilities and Community Lifelines 

Source: Oregon Partnership for Disaster Resilience. Oregon Department of Geology and Mineral Industries.  
Note: To view detail click this link to access Oregon HazVu 

https://www.jcfd3.com/sites/g/files/vyhlif5396/f/uploads/2017_standards_of_cover.pdf
https://www.fema.gov/emergency-managers/practitioners/lifelines
https://www.oregon.gov/dogami/hazvu/Pages/index.aspx


 

|       Jackson County NHMP 2024: Fire District #3 Addendum    Page MW | 17 

 

Table FD3-3 Facilities 

 
Source: Oregon Department of Geology and Mineral Industries, Fire District #3 NHMP Steering Committee

Facility Name Jurisdiction Community Lifeline 
Category

Lifeline 
Type 

Earthquake-
Liquefaction 

Hazard 

Flood 
Hazard  

Landslide 
Hazard 

Wildfire 
Hazard 

Admin Building (ca. 2008) County safety and security fire station low minimal low low
Agate Lake Station (ca. 1995) County safety and security fire station low minimal low Moderate
Central Point Station (ca. 1983) Central Point safety and security fire station low minimal low low
Dodge Bridge Station (ca. 1979) County safety and security fire station low minimal low low
Eagle Point Station (ca. 2002) Eagle Point safety and security fire station moderate minimal low low
Gold Hil l  Station (ca. 1999) County safety and security fire station moderate 500-Year low low
Sams Valley Station (ca. 1985) County safety and security fire station none minimal moderate low
Scenic Avenue Station (ca. 2020) Central Point safety and security fire station low minimal low low
White City Station (ca. 1977) County safety and security fire station low minimal low low
Training Center (ca. 2003) County safety and security fire station low minimal low low



 

|       Jackson County NHMP 2024: Fire District #3 Addendum   Page FD3 | 18 

Hazard Profiles 
The following sections briefly describe relevant information for each profiled hazard. For more 
information on the vulnerabilities of each partner jurisdiction (Jackson County, Central Point, 
Eagle Point, and Gold Hill) please review Volume I, Section 2 and the applicable city addenda in 
Volume III. More information on Jackson County Hazards can be found in Volume 1 Section 2 
Risk Assessment and in the Risk Assessment for Region 4, Southwest Oregon, Oregon SNHMP 
(2020). 

Air Quality 
The steering committee determined that the district’s probability for poor air quality is high 
(which is the same as the County’s Rating) and that their vulnerability to poor air quality is also 
high (which is the same as the County’s Rating).  

Volume I, Section 2 describes the characteristics of air quality hazards, their history, and how 
they relate to future climate projections (see OCCRI report), as well as the location, extent, and 
probability of a potential event. Increases in wildfire conditions have shown an increasing 
potential for air quality hazards.   

Future Projections 
According to the Oregon Climate Change Research Institute “Future Climate Projections, Jackson 
County,”4 climate change is expected to reduce outdoor air quality. Warmer temperatures may 
increase ground-level ozone concentrations, while increases in the number and size of wildfires 
may increase concentrations of smoke and fine particulate matter. Moreover, increases in pollen 
abundance and the duration of the pollen season may increase aeroallergens. Such poor air 
quality is expected to exacerbate allergy and asthma conditions and increase the incidence of 
respiratory and cardiovascular illnesses and death. In Jackson County, the number of smoke 
wave days is projected to decrease by 20%, but the intensity of smoke on those days is projected 
to increase by 81%. 

Increasingly poor outdoor air quality will have exponentially high impacts upon those living in 
older homes, manufactured housing, RVs, and campgrounds, or the unhoused. The need to 
install new or upgraded air conditioning systems or HVAC filtration systems will impact the cost 
of housing. 

Additional information on air quality can be found in Volume I, Section 2. 

Drought  
The steering committee determined that Fire District #3’s probability for drought is high (which 
is the same as the County’s rating) and that their vulnerability to drought is moderate (which is 
the same as the County’s rating).  

 
4 Oregon Climate Change Research Institute, Future Climate Projections, Jackson County, Oregon. February 2023. 

https://www.oregon.gov/lcd/NH/Documents/2020ORNHMP_2.3.4_R4_SW_OR.pdf
https://www.oregon.gov/lcd/NH/Documents/2020ORNHMP_2.3.4_R4_SW_OR.pdf
https://oregonstate.app.box.com/s/kglmer2q452kiwz8dvupndkhc61ru34l


 

|       Jackson County NHMP 2024: Fire District #3 Addendum   Page FD3 | 19 

Volume I, Section 2 describes the characteristics of drought hazards, their history, and how they 
relate to future climate projections (see OCCRI report), as well as the location, extent, and 
probability of a potential event. Due to the climate of Jackson County, past and present weather 
conditions have shown an increasing potential for drought.   

The District utilizes hydrants that are supplied with municipal water systems in Central Point,. 
Eagle Point, and Gold Hill. Other developed areas and the industrial park of White City also have 
hydrants.5 The fire district maintains, and inspects, around 50 below ground and above ground 
water storage tanks throughout the district. Local water supplies fed by aquifers are significantly 
reduced during periods of drought. During these period stored water available to the fire district 
is less reliable. 

Future Projections 
According to the Oregon Climate Change Research Institute “Future Climate Projections, Jackson 
County,”6 drought, as represented by low summer soil moisture, low spring snowpack, low 
summer runoff, and low summer precipitation, is projected to become more frequent in Jackson 
County by the 2050s.  

Increasingly frequent droughts will have economic and social impacts upon those who depend 
upon predictable growing periods (ranches, farms, vineyards, gardeners) as well as upon the 
price and availability of fresh vegetables. It may also stress local jurisdiction’s ability to provide 
water for irrigation or commercial and household use. 

Please review Volume I, Section 2 for additional information on this hazard. 

Earthquake (Cascadia) 
The steering committee determined that Fire District #3’s probability for a Cascadia Subduction 
Zone (CSZ) earthquake is moderate (which is the same as the County’s rating) and that their 
vulnerability to a CSZ earthquake is high (which is the same as the County’s rating).  

Figure FD3-5 displays perceived shaking hazards from a Cascadia Subduction Zone earthquake 
event. As shown in the figure below, the areas of greatest concern within Fire District #3 are 
near populated areas (darker areas).  

 
5 Jackson County Fire District #3. Standards of Cover (2017). 

6 Oregon Climate Change Research Institute, Future Climate Projections, Jackson County, Oregon. February 2023. 

https://oregonstate.app.box.com/s/kglmer2q452kiwz8dvupndkhc61ru34l
https://www.jcfd3.com/sites/g/files/vyhlif5396/f/uploads/2017_standards_of_cover.pdf


 

|       Jackson County NHMP 2024: Fire District #3 Addendum   Page FD3 | 20 

Figure FD3-5 Cascadia Subduction Zone Perceieved Shaking 

Source: Oregon Partnership for Disaster Resilience. Oregon Department of Geology and Mineral Industries.  
Note: To view detail click this link to access Oregon HazVu. 

Volume I, Section 2 describes the characteristics of earthquake hazards and their history, as well 
as the location, extent, and probability of a potential event. Generally, an event that affects the 
County is likely to affect Fire District #3 as well. The causes and characteristics of an earthquake 
event are appropriately described within Volume I, Section 2, as well as the location and extent 
of potential hazards. Previous occurrences are well documented within Volume I, Section 2 and 
the community impacts described by the County would generally be the same for Fire District #3 
as well.  

The local faults, the County’s proximity to the Cascadia Subduction Zone, potential slope 
instability, and the prevalence of certain soils subject to liquefaction and amplification combine 
to give the County a high-risk profile. Due to the expected pattern of damage resulting from a 
CSZ event, the Oregon Resilience Plan divides the State into four distinct zones and places 
Jackson County predominately within the “Valley Zone” (Valley Zone, from the summit of the 
Coast Range to the summit of the Cascades). Within the Southwest Oregon region, damage and 

https://www.oregon.gov/dogami/hazvu/Pages/index.aspx


 

|       Jackson County NHMP 2024: Fire District #3 Addendum   Page FD3 | 21 

shaking is expected to be strong and widespread - an event will be disruptive to daily life and 
commerce and the main priority is expected to be restoring services to business and residents. 

Information on the estimated seismic resistance of two fire district stations, determined by 
DOGAMI in 2007, is shown in Table FD3-4; each “X” represents one building within that ranking 
category. Of the facilities evaluated by DOGAMI using a Rapid Visual Survey (RVS), two (2) have a 
high (>10% chance) collapse potential. Note that funding for seismic retrofits to the Central Point 
Station was received from the Seismic Rehabilitation Grant Program (SRGP) in 2017. Additional 
stations, including the White City Station, have also benefitted from seismic retrofits (see 
Mitigation Successes). 

Table FD3-4 Rapid Visual Survey Scores 

Source: DOGAMI 2007. Open File Report 0-07-02. Statewide Seismic Needs Assessment Using Rapid Visual Assessment.   
“*” – Site ID is referenced on the RVS Jackson County Map 

In addition to building damages, utility (electric power, water, wastewater, natural gas) and 
transportation systems (bridges, pipelines) are also likely to experience significant damage.  

Utility systems will be significantly damaged, including damaged buildings and damage to utility 
infrastructure, including water and wastewater treatment plants and equipment at high voltage 
substations (especially 230 kV or higher which are more vulnerable than lower voltage 
substations). Buried pipe systems will suffer extensive damage with approximately one break per 
mile in soft soil areas. There would be a much lower rate of pipe breaks in other areas. 
Restoration of utility services will require substantial mutual aid from utilities outside of the 
affected area. 

Please review Volume 1, Section 2 for additional information on this hazard.  

Earthquake (Crustal) 
The steering committee determined that Fire District #3’s probability for a crustal earthquake is 
low (which is the same as the County’s rating) and that their vulnerability to crustal earthquake is 
moderate (which is higher than County’s rating).  

Figure FD3-6 shows the liquefaction risk to the community lifelines that are identified in more 
detail in Table FD3-3. As shown in the figure, the area of greatest concern near Fire District #3 
(liquefaction hazard orange to red areas) are near populated areas.  

Public Safety
Jackson County Fire District #3 - White City Station
(8333 Agate Rd) - see Mitigation Successes

Jack_fir02  X

Jackson County Fire District #3 - Central Point Station
(600 S Front St) - see Mitigation Successes

Jack_fir09 X

Facility Site ID*

Level of Collapse Potential
Low   

(< 1%)
Moderate 

(>1%)
High 

(>10%)
Very High 

(100%)

http://www.oregongeology.org/sub/projects/rvs/default.htm
http://www.oregongeology.org/sub/projects/rvs/maps/Maps_Jackson_County.pdf
http://www.oregongeology.org/sub/projects/rvs/maps/Maps_Jackson_County.pdf


 

|       Jackson County NHMP 2024: Fire District #3 Addendum   Page FD3 | 22 

Figure FD3-6 Liquefaction Susceptibility 

Source: Oregon Partnership for Disaster Resilience. Oregon Department of Geology and Mineral Industries.  
Note: To view detail click this link to access Oregon HazVu. 

Volume I, Section 2 describes the characteristics of earthquake hazards, history, as well as the 
location, extent, and probability of a potential event. Generally, an event that affects the County 
is likely to affect Fire District #3 as well. The causes and characteristics of an earthquake event 
are appropriately described within Volume I, Section 2, as well as the location and extent of 
potential hazards. Previous occurrences are well-documented within Volume I, Section 2 and the 
community impacts described by the County would generally be the same for Fire District #3 as 
well.  

Earthquake-induced damages are difficult to predict and depend on the size, type, and location 
of the earthquake, as well as site-specific building and soil characteristics. Presently, it is not 
possible to accurately forecast the location or size of earthquakes, but it is possible to predict the 
behavior of soil at any site. In many major earthquakes, damages have primarily been caused by 
the behavior of the soil.  

 

https://www.oregon.gov/dogami/hazvu/Pages/index.aspx


 

|       Jackson County NHMP 2024: Fire District #3 Addendum   Page FD3 | 23 

Vulnerability Assessment 
Due to insufficient data and resources, Fire District #3 is currently unable to perform a 
quantitative risk assessment for this hazard, however an exposure assessment was conducted. 
Identified Community Lifelines that are exposed to this hazard are shown in Table FD3-3. Note 
that even if a facility has exposure, it does not mean there is a high risk (vulnerability). In 
addition, water storage tanks are potentially vulnerable to earthquakes. 

Future Projections 
Future development (residential, commercial, or industrial) within Jackson County will be at risk 
to earthquake impacts, although this risk can be mitigated by the adoption and enforcement of 
high development and building standards. Reducing risks to vulnerable populations should be 
considered during the redevelopment of existing properties. 

Please review Volume I, Section 2 for additional information on this hazard. 

Emerging Infectious Disease 
The steering committee determined that Fire District #3’s probability for emerging infectious 
disease is moderate (which is the same as the County’s rating) and that their vulnerability is high 
(which is the same as the County’s rating).  

Emerging infectious diseases are those that have recently appeared in a population or those 
whose incidence or geographic range is rapidly increasing or threatens to increase. Emerging 
infections may be caused by biological pathogens (e.g., virus, parasite, fungus, or bacterium) and 
may be: previously unknown or undetected biological pathogens; biological pathogens that have 
spread to new geographic areas or populations; previously known biological pathogens whose 
role in specific diseases was previously undetected; and biological pathogens whose incidence of 
disease was previously declining but whose incidence of disease has reappeared (re-emerging 
infectious disease).7     

Volume I, Section 2 describes the characteristics of emerging infectious disease and their history, 
as well as the location, extent, and probability of a potential event within the region. Generally, 
an event that affects the County is likely to affect the Fire District as well.  

Future Projections 
Vulnerable populations within Jackson County, including children, elderly, those living with 
disabilities, and unhoused individuals, will be a greater risk to emerging infectious diseases in the 
future.  

Please review Volume I, Section 2 for additional information on this hazard. 

 
7 Baylor College of Medicine, Emerging Infectious Disease, URL: https://www.bcm.edu/departments/molecular-virology-and-
microbiology/emerging-infections-and-biodefense/emerging-infectious-diseases, accessed September 17, 2017. 

https://www.bcm.edu/departments/molecular-virology-and-microbiology/emerging-infections-and-biodefense/emerging-infectious-diseases
https://www.bcm.edu/departments/molecular-virology-and-microbiology/emerging-infections-and-biodefense/emerging-infectious-diseases


 

|       Jackson County NHMP 2024: Fire District #3 Addendum   Page FD3 | 24 

Flood 
The steering committee determined that Fire District #3’s probability for flood is high (which is 
the same as the County’s rating) and that their vulnerability to flood is moderate (which is the 
same as the County’s rating).  

Volume I, Section 2 describes the characteristics of flood hazards, their history, and how they 
relate to future climate projections (see OCCRI report), as well as the location, extent, and 
probability of a potential event. Portions of Fire District #3 have mapped FEMA flood zones 
(Figure FD3-7). Other portions of Fire District #3 could be subject to flooding from local storm 
water drainage; however, areas of known flood hazard do not impact development or 
infrastructure.  

The main flood sources described in the Jackson County Flood Insurance Study (2018) for Fire 
District #3 are Rogue River, Bear Creek, Antelope Creek, Daisy, Griffin, and Mingus Creeks in 
Central Point and Little Butte Creek in Eagle Point. The impact of flooding in Gold Hill and 
unincorporated parts of the County (including White City) minimally impact the district. The Gold 
Hill Fire Station is within the 500-year chance flood zone (Table FD3-3 and Figure FD3-7). 
Significant flooding may occur from heavy rain on snow events or by dam failure of the Lost 
Creek, Fish Lake, Agate Lake, and/or Emigrant Lake dams.8 Both the Dodge Bridge and Gold Hill 
stations are within the inundation zone of Lake Creek dam and Eagle Point is within the 
inundation zone of Fish Lake dam.  

Fire District #3 generally has low to minimal risk from two types of flooding: riverine and urban. 
Riverine flooding occurs when streams overflow their banks and inundate low-lying areas. This is 
a natural process that adds sediment and nutrients to fertile floodplain areas. It usually results 
from prolonged periods of precipitation over a wide geographic area. Most areas are generally 
flooded by low velocity sheets of water. Urban flooding occurs as land is converted to impervious 
surfaces and hydrologic systems are changed. Precipitation is collected and transmitted to 
streams at a much faster rate, causing floodwaters that rise rapidly and peak with violent force. 
During urban flooding, storm drains can back up and cause localized flooding of streets and 
basements. For more information on flood vulnerability see applicable city addenda in Volume 
III. 

 
8 Jackson County Fire District #3. Standards of Cover (2017). 

https://oregonstate.app.box.com/s/kglmer2q452kiwz8dvupndkhc61ru34l
https://map1.msc.fema.gov/data/41/S/PDF/41029CV001C.pdf?LOC=72fec2f0e75a346aa339f05c9b64da57
https://www.jcfd3.com/sites/g/files/vyhlif5396/f/uploads/2017_standards_of_cover.pdf


 

|       Jackson County NHMP 2024: Fire District #3 Addendum   Page FD3 | 25 

Figure FD3-7 FEMA Flood Zones 

Source: Oregon Partnership for Disaster Resilience. Oregon Department of Geology and Mineral Industries.  
Note: To view detail click this link to access Oregon HazVu. 

Vulnerability Assessment 
Due to insufficient data and resources, Fire District #3 is currently unable to perform a 
quantitative risk assessment for this hazard, however an exposure assessment was conducted. 
Identified community lifelines that are exposed to this hazard are shown in Table FD3-3. Note 
that even if a facility has exposure, it does not mean there is a high risk (vulnerability).  

Floods can have a devastating impact on almost every aspect of the community, including 
private property damage, public infrastructure damage, and economic loss from business 
interruption. It is important for Fire District #3 to be aware of flooding impacts and assess its 
level of risk.  

The economic losses due to business closures often total more than the initial property losses 
that result from flood events. Business owners and their employees are significantly impacted by 

https://www.oregon.gov/dogami/hazvu/Pages/index.aspx


 

|       Jackson County NHMP 2024: Fire District #3 Addendum   Page FD3 | 26 

flood events. Direct damages from flooding are the most common impacts, but indirect 
damages, such as diminished clientele, can be just as debilitating to a business.  

The Jackson County Flood Insurance Study (January 19, 2018) has a brief history of flooding in 
Jackson County (Volume I, Section 2). The Conrad Control Station is within the 500-year chance 
flood zone while other Fire District #3 facilities are at minimal flood risk.  

Floodwaters can affect building foundations, seep into basements or cause damage to the 
interior, exterior, and contents of buildings, dependent upon the velocity and depth of the water 
and by the presence of floating debris.  

Future Projections 
According to the Oregon Climate Change Research Institute (OCCRI report) “Future Climate 
Projections, Jackson County,” 9 winter flood risk at mid-elevations in Jackson County, where 
temperatures are near freezing during winter and precipitation is a mix of rain and snow, is 
projected to increase as winter temperatures increase. The temperature increase will lead to an 
increase in the percentage of precipitation falling as rain rather than snow. The projected 
increases in total precipitation, and in rain relative to snow, likely will increase flood magnitudes 
in the region. Vulnerable populations adjacent to floodways (including the unhoused, 
manufactured home communities, and campground occupants) will be more at risk as the winter 
flood risk increases. 

National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) 
FEMA updated the Flood Insurance Study (FIS) and Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRMs) in 2018 
(effective January 19, 2018). Fire District #3 is not a community which has authority to adopt and 
enforce floodplain management regulations for the areas within its jurisdiction. All partner 
jurisdictions (Jackson County and cities) participate in the National Flood Insurance Program 
(NFIP). For more information on the NFIP see applicable county (Volume I, Section 2) and city 
addenda (Volume III). 

Please review Volume I, Section 2 for additional information on this hazard. 

Landslide  
The steering committee determined that Fire District #3’s probability for landslide is moderate 
(which is lower than the County’s rating) and that their vulnerability to landslide is moderate 
(which is higher than the County’s rating).  

Volume I, Section 2 describes the characteristics of landslide hazards, history, how they relate to 
future climate projections (see OCCRI report), as well as the location, extent, and probability of a 
potential event within the region.  

Landslide susceptibility exposure for Fire District #3 is shown in Figure FD3-8. Most of Fire 
District #3 demonstrates a low susceptibility to landslide exposure, with corridors of moderate 

 
9 Oregon Climate Change Research Institute, Future Climate Projections, Jackson County, Oregon. February 2023. 

https://map1.msc.fema.gov/data/41/S/PDF/41029CV001C.pdf?LOC=72fec2f0e75a346aa339f05c9b64da57
https://oregonstate.app.box.com/s/ntb7ryrgr5u1f82p6mdmr5i22zcipeoy
https://oregonstate.app.box.com/s/kglmer2q452kiwz8dvupndkhc61ru34l


 

|       Jackson County NHMP 2024: Fire District #3 Addendum   Page FD3 | 27 

and high susceptibility concentrated around higher elevations of the district. The chief concern 
for landslide is along rural transportation corridors and waterways. 

Vulnerability Assessment 
Due to insufficient data and resources, Fire District #3 is currently unable to perform a 
quantitative risk assessment for this hazard, however an exposure assessment was conducted. 
Identified community lifelines that are exposed to this hazard are shown in Table FD3-3. Note 
that even if an area has a high percentage of land in a high or very high landslide exposure 
susceptibility zone, that does not mean there is a high risk (vulnerability), because risk is the 
intersection of a hazard and assets.  

Future Projections 
Landslides are often triggered by rainfall when the soil becomes saturated. As a surrogate 
measure of landslide risk, the Oregon Climate Change Research Institute (OCCRI report) report 
presents a threshold based on recent precipitation (cumulative precipitation over the previous 3 
days) and antecedent precipitation (cumulative precipitation on the 15 days prior to the previous 
3 days). By the 2050s under the higher emissions scenario, the average number of days per year 
in Jackson County on which the landslide risk threshold is exceeded is projected to remain about 
the same, with an increase of 0.2 days. However, landslide risk depends on multiple factors, and 
this metric, which is based on precipitation, does not reflect all aspects of the hazard. Additional 
triggers, such as earthquakes, wildfires, or development, can increase risks of landslides. Future 
development along slopes or adjacent to riverbanks will be a greater risk of impact from this 
hazard. 
 

 

https://oregonstate.app.box.com/s/kglmer2q452kiwz8dvupndkhc61ru34l


 

|       Jackson County NHMP 2024: Fire District #3 Addendum   Page FD3 | 28 

Figure FD3-8 Landslide Susceptibility Exposure 

Source: Oregon Partnership for Disaster Resilience. Oregon Department of Geology and Mineral Industries.  
Note: To view detail click this link to access Oregon HazVu. 

Severe Weather 
Severe weather can account for a variety of intense and potentially damaging weather events. 
These events include windstorms and winter storms. The following section describes the unique 
probability and vulnerability of each identified weather hazard. Other more abrupt or irregular 
events such as hail are also described in this section. 

Extreme Heat Event 
The steering committee determined that Fire District #3’s probability for extreme heat event is 
high (which is the same as the County’s Rating) and that their vulnerability to an extreme heat 
event is moderate (which is the same as the County’s Rating). 

Jackson County’s NHMP Volume I, Section 2, adequately describes the causes and characteristics 
of extreme heat (see OCCRI report), as well as the history, location, extent, and probability of a 

https://www.oregon.gov/dogami/hazvu/Pages/index.aspx
https://oregonstate.app.box.com/s/kglmer2q452kiwz8dvupndkhc61ru34l


 

|       Jackson County NHMP 2024: Fire District #3 Addendum   Page FD3 | 29 

potential event and how it relates to future climate projections. Generally, an event that affects 
the County is likely to affect Fire District #3 as well. A severe heat episode or “heat wave” occurs 
about every two to three years, and typically lasting two to three days but can last as many as 
five days. A severe heat episode can be defined as consecutive days of temperatures in the high 
90s and above 100. Severe heat hazard in Southern Oregon can be described as the average 
number of days with temperatures greater than or equal to 90-degrees Fahrenheit.10  

Extreme heat events can and have occurred in Fire District #3, and while they typically do not 
cause loss of life, they are becoming more frequent and have the potential to impact economic 
activity as well as quality of life and have caused threat to life in some cases. 

Future Projections 
According to the Oregon Climate Change Research Institute (OCCRI report) “Future Climate 
Projections, Jackson County,”11 average temperature is expected to continue increasing during 
the twenty-first century if global emissions of greenhouse gases continue. The number, duration, 
and intensity of extreme heat events will increase as temperatures continue to warm. In Jackson 
County, the number of extremely hot days (days on which the temperature is 90°F or higher) and 
the temperature on the hottest day of the year are projected to increase by the 2020s and 
2050s. The number of days per year with temperatures 90°F or higher is projected to increase by 
an average of 28 days (range 12–38 days) by the 2050s, relative to the 1971–2000 historical 
baselines. The temperature on the hottest day of the year is projected to increase by an average 
of about 7°F (range 3–8°F) by the 2050s. Higher temperatures and longer/more extreme heat 
events will have negative impacts upon vulnerable populations such as those over 65+, children, 
those living in older or temporary housing, and field workers. 

See the Risk Assessment (Volume I, Section 2) for additional information on this hazard. 

Windstorm 
The steering committee determined that Fire District #3’s probability for windstorm is high 
(which is the same as the County’s rating) and that their vulnerability to windstorm is moderate 
(which is the same as the County’s rating).  

Volume I, Section 2 describes the characteristics of windstorm hazards, their history, and how 
they relate to future climate projections (see OCCRI report), as well as the location, extent, and 
probability of a potential event within the region. Because windstorms typically occur during 
winter months, they are sometimes accompanied by ice, freezing rain, flooding, and snow. Other 
severe weather events that may accompany windstorms, including thunderstorms, hail, and 
lightning strikes are standard for Fire District #3. 

Volume I, Section 2 describes the impacts caused by windstorms, including power outages, 
downed trees, heavy precipitation, building damages, and storm-related debris. Additionally, 

 
10 DLCD. Oregon State Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan. 2020. 

11 Oregon Climate Change Research Institute, Future Climate Projections, Jackson County, Oregon. February 2023. 

https://oregonstate.app.box.com/s/kglmer2q452kiwz8dvupndkhc61ru34l
https://oregonstate.app.box.com/s/kglmer2q452kiwz8dvupndkhc61ru34l


 

|       Jackson County NHMP 2024: Fire District #3 Addendum   Page FD3 | 30 

transportation and economic disruptions result as well. Fire District #3 regularly experiences high 
winds. Pacific Power has mitigated the risk of power loss by trimming trees near their above 
ground infrastructure.  

Damage from high winds generally has resulted in downed utility lines and trees but has minimal 
impact upon Fire District #3. Electrical power can be out anywhere from a few hours to several 
days. Outdoor signs have also suffered damage.  

Future Projections 
Limited research suggests little if any change in the frequency and intensity of windstorms in the 
Northwest as a result of climate change. Those impacted by windstorms at present, including 
older residential or commercial developments with above-ground utilities, poor insulation or 
older construction, heavy tree canopies, or poor storm drainage, will continue to be impacted by 
windstorms in the future.  

Please review Volume I, Section 2 for additional information on this hazard. 

Winter Storm (Snow/Ice) 
The steering committee determined that Fire District #3’s probability for winter storm is high 
(which is the same as the County’s rating) and that their vulnerability to winter storm is high 
(which is higher than the County’s rating).  

Volume I, Section 2 describes the characteristics of winter storm hazards, their history, and how 
they relate to future climate projections (see OCCRI report), as well as the location, extent, and 
probability of a potential event within the region. Severe winter storms can consist of rain, 
freezing rain, ice, snow, cold temperatures, and wind. They originate from troughs of low 
pressure offshore that ride along the jet stream during fall, winter, and early spring months. 
Severe winter storms affecting Fire District #3 typically originate in the Gulf of Alaska or in the 
central Pacific Ocean. These storms are most common from November through March. 

Major winter storms can and have occurred in the Fire District #3 area and while they typically 
do not cause significant damage, they are frequent and have the potential to impact economic 
activity. Road closures due to winter weather are an uncommon occurrence but can interrupt 
commuter and commercial traffic.  

Future Projections 
According to the Oregon Climate Change Research Institute (OCCRI report) “Future Climate 
Projections, Jackson County,”12 cold extremes will become less frequent and intense as the 
climate warms. In Jackson County, the number of cold days (maximum temperature 32°F or 
lower) per year is projected to decrease by an average of 3 days (range -2– -5 days) by the 
2050s, relative to the 1971–2000 historical baselines, under the higher emissions scenario. The 
temperature on the coldest night of the year is projected to increase by an average of 6°F (range 
3–9°F) by the 2050s. The intensity of extreme precipitation is expected to increase as the 

 
12 Oregon Climate Change Research Institute, Future Climate Projections, Jackson County, Oregon. February 2023. 

https://oregonstate.app.box.com/s/kglmer2q452kiwz8dvupndkhc61ru34l
https://oregonstate.app.box.com/s/ntb7ryrgr5u1f82p6mdmr5i22zcipeoy


 

|       Jackson County NHMP 2024: Fire District #3 Addendum   Page FD3 | 31 

atmosphere warms and holds more water vapor. In Jackson County, the number of days per year 
with at least 0.75 inches of precipitation is not projected to change substantially. However, by 
the 2050s, the amount of precipitation on the wettest day and wettest consecutive five days per 
year is projected to increase by an average of 15% (range -3–32%) and 11% (range -3–34%), 
respectively. If these precipitation events occur in the winter, heavier winter storms with larger 
impacts upon transportation routes, vulnerable populations, and economic activity can be 
expected. 

Please review Volume I, Section 2 for additional information on this hazard. 

Volcanic Event 
The steering committee determined that Fire District #3’s probability for a volcanic event is low 
(which is the same as the County’s rating) and that their vulnerability to a volcanic event is low 
(which is the same as the County’s rating).  

Volume I, Section 2 describes the characteristics of volcanic hazards and their history, as well as 
the location, extent, and probability of a potential event within the region. Generally, an event 
that affects the County is likely to affect Fire District #3 as well. Fire District #3 is very unlikely to 
experience anything more than volcanic ash during a volcanic event. 

Future Projections 
Although the science of volcano predictions is improving, it remains challenging to predict a 
potential volcanic event. Ash fall, which will be the greatest impact, will impact the entire 
County. Impacts will be felt hardest by property managers (ranches, farmers, etc.) and by those 
relying upon clean surface water (for drinking water production and irrigation).  

Please review Volume I, Section 2 for additional information on this hazard. 

Wildfire 
The steering committee determined that Fire District #3’s probability for wildfire is high (which is 
the same as the County’s rating) and that their vulnerability to wildfire is high (which is the same 
as the County’s rating).  

Volume I, Section 2 describes the characteristics of wildfire hazards, their history, and how they 
relate to future climate projections (see OCCRI report), as well as the location, extent, and 
probability of a potential event within the region. The location and extent of a wildfire vary 
depending on fuel, topography, and weather conditions. Weather and urbanization conditions 
are primarily at cause for the hazard level. Wildfires near Fire District #3 in recent times have 
included Table Rock Road (2023), Atlantic Avenue (2018), East Evans (1994), Blackwell (2010), 
and Upper Table Rock (1980). Figure FD3-9 shows burn probability in Fire District #3. 

https://oregonstate.app.box.com/s/kglmer2q452kiwz8dvupndkhc61ru34l


 

|       Jackson County NHMP 2024: Fire District #3 Addendum   Page FD3 | 32 

Figure FD3-9 Burn Probability 

Source: Oregon Partnership for Disaster Resilience. USFS Pacific Northwest Region Wildfire Risk Assessment (PNRA) 
Note: To view detail click this link to access Oregon Explorer’s CWPP Planning Tool. 

The potential community impacts and vulnerabilities described in Volume I, Section 2 are 
generally accurate for Fire District #3 as well. The Rogue Valley Integrated Community Wildfire 
Protection Plan (RVIFP, updated 2019) assesses wildfire risk, maps wildland urban interface 
areas, and includes actions to mitigate wildfire risk. Fire District #3 is included in the RVIFP and 
will update Fire District #3’s wildfire risk assessment if the RVIFP presents better data during 
future updates (an action item is included within Volume I, Section 4 to participate in updates to 
the integrated fire plan and to continue to maintain and update their RVIFP). The district is 
actively reducing fuels in and around the district. Fire District #3 hereby incorporates the RVIFP 
into this addendum by reference to provide greater detail to sensitivity and exposure to the 
wildfire hazard.  

Property can be damaged or destroyed with one fire as structures, vegetation, and other 
flammables easily merge to become unpredictable and hard to manage. Other factors that affect 
ability to effectively respond to a wildfire include access to the location and to water, response 

https://tools.oregonexplorer.info/OE_HtmlViewer/index.html?viewer=wildfireplanning
https://jacksoncountyor.org/emergency/County-Plans/Fire-Plan
https://jacksoncountyor.org/emergency/County-Plans/Fire-Plan


 

|       Jackson County NHMP 2024: Fire District #3 Addendum   Page FD3 | 33 

time from the fire station, availability of personnel and equipment, and weather (e.g., heat, low 
humidity, high winds, and drought). 

Vulnerability Assessment 
Due to insufficient data and resources, Fire District #3 is currently unable to perform a 
quantitative risk assessment for this hazard, however an exposure assessment was conducted. 
Identified community lifelines that are exposed to this hazard are shown in Table FD3-3. Note 
that even if a facility has exposure, it does not mean there is a high risk (vulnerability). Seven fire 
stations are assigned a geographical Fire Management Zone (FMZ), which defines its initial 
response area (Figure FD3-10). The Table Rock station does not have an independent FMZ. The 
following provides a summary of major characteristics of each FMZ, see the Standards of Cover 
(2017) for more information: 

Agate Lake FMZ: Primarily a rural residential district that includes a golf course and sanitary 
landfill. Mostly mountainous terrain. Predominate risks include single family residential fires, 
medical incidents, and wildfire. The Agate Lake fire station is staffed by volunteer personnel only. 

Central Point FMZ: Includes the City of Central Point and surrounding rural area. This FMZ is the 
most developed in the district with the most population and developed property. It includes the 
largest number of maximum/worst, special, and infrastructure risk occupancies. The FMZ is 
served by two fire stations, Central Point and Scenic Drive, that each have full-time paid career 
engine companies.  

Dodge Bridge FMZ: Primarily a rural residential district. There are six high-risk occupancies and 
one infrastructure occupancy in the FMZ. The Dodge Bridge fire station is staffed by volunteer 
personnel only. 

Eagle Point FMZ: Includes the City of Eagle Point and surrounding rural area. The FMZ contains 
24 maximum or high-risk occupancies and 18 special or infrastructure related occupancies. 
Wildfire risk is increased in areas of steep terrain with limited access. The Eagle Point fire station 
is staffed with a full-time paid engine company. 

Gold Hill FMZ: Includes the City of Gold Hill and surrounding rural area. The FMZ contains 21 
maximum or high-risk occupancies and ten occupancies identified as special or infrastructure 
risks. Much of this FMZ has high wildfire risk. The Gold Hill fire station is staffed by volunteer 
personnel only. 

Sams Valley FMZ: This is the geographically largest FMZ and contains rural residential, 
agricultural, and forest land. The FMZ includes the Upper and Lower Table Rocks. It contains 
three high hazard occupancies, and four occupancies designated as special or infrastructure 
risks. About one-third of the FMZ has high wildfire risk. The Sams Valley fire station is staffed by 
volunteer personnel only. 

White City FMZ: Includes the residential and industrial of unincorporated White City and 
surrounding rural areas. This FMZ has the highest number of high hazard industrial occupancies 
including the White City industrial park (155 high or maximum risk occupancies and 28 
occupancies identified as special or infrastructure risks). The White City fire station is staffed 

https://www.jcfd3.com/sites/g/files/vyhlif5396/f/uploads/2017_standards_of_cover.pdf


 

|       Jackson County NHMP 2024: Fire District #3 Addendum   Page FD3 | 34 

with a full-time paid engine company. For more information see: 
https://storymaps.arcgis.com/stories/134694e7ce124437b29e742ff0d76fa8.  

Figure FD3-10 Fire Management Zones 

Source: Jackson County Fire District #3  

Future Projections 
According to the Oregon Climate Change Research Institute “Future Climate Projections, Jackson 
County,”13 wildfire frequency, intensity, and area burned are projected to continue increasing in 
the Northwest. Wildfire risk, expressed as the average number of days per year on which fire 
danger is very high, is projected to increase in Jackson County by 13 days (range -6– 29) by the 
2050s, relative to the historical baseline (1971–2000), under the higher emissions scenario. 
Similarly, the average number of days per year on which vapor pressure deficit is extreme is 
projected to increase by 29 days (range 12–42) by the 2050s. Communities at risk to wildfire 
include those within the urban wildfire interface or along river or creek corridors, like Bear 
Creek, where fire can travel quickly. Communities will need to address growing wildfire risks if 
populations are not restricted from expanding further into higher risk areas. 

Please review Volume I, Section 2 for additional information on this hazard. 

 
13 Oregon Climate Change Research Institute, Future Climate Projections, Jackson County, Oregon. February 2023. 

https://storymaps.arcgis.com/stories/134694e7ce124437b29e742ff0d76fa8


 

|       Jackson County NHMP 2024: Fire District #3 Addendum   Page FD3 | 35 

Attachment A:  
Public Involvement Summary 

Members of the steering committee provided content and edits to the NHMP prior to the public 
review period as reflected in the final document. In addition, a survey was distributed that 
included responses from residents within Fire District #3 boundaries (Volume III, Appendix F). 

To provide the public information regarding the draft NHMP addendum, and provide an 
opportunity for comment, an announcement (see below) was provided from October 18, 2023 
and continued into the FEMA review process. The plan was also posted and announced on the 
County’s website. There were no public comments provided. Additional opportunities for 
stakeholders and the public to be involved in the planning process are addressed in Volume II, 
Appendix B.  

A diverse array of agencies and organizations were provided an opportunity to provide input to 
inform the plan’s content through a variety of mechanisms including the opportunity for 
comment on the draft plan. The agencies and organizations represent local and regional 
agencies involved in hazard mitigation activities, those that have the authority to regulate 
development, neighboring communities, representatives of businesses, academia, and other 
private organizations, and representatives of nonprofit organizations, including community-
based organizations, that work directly with and/or provide support to underserved 
communities and socially vulnerable populations. For more information on the engagement 
strategy see Volume II, Appendix B. 



 

|       Jackson County NHMP 2024: Fire District #3 Addendum   Page FD3 | 36 

Website Posting 

  



 

|       Jackson County NHMP 2024: Fire District #3 Addendum   Page FD3 | 37 

Fire District #3 Steering Committee 
Steering committee members possessed familiarity with the communities within Fire District #3 
and how it is affected by natural hazard events. The steering committee guided the development 
process through several steps including goal confirmation and prioritization, action item 
development, and information sharing, to make the NHMP as comprehensive as possible. The 
steering committee met formally on the following date: 

Meeting #1: Fire District #3 steering committee, February 21, 2023 (via Zoom) 
During this meeting, the steering committee was provided information on hazard mitigation 
planning, the NHMP process, and project timeline. The steering committee:  

• Reviewed history of hazard events in Fire District #3. 
• Reviewed and confirmed the NHMP’s mission and goals. 
• Discussed the NHMP public outreach strategy. 
• Discussed development activity and community lifelines. 
• Reviewed and provided feedback on the draft risk assessment including community 

vulnerabilities and hazard information. 
• Developed mitigation strategy (actions). 
• Reviewed their implementation and maintenance program. 

Meeting Attendees: 
• Convener, Mike Hussey. Fire Chief 
• John Patterson, Division Chief-Risk Reduction 


